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statement of “National Information Technologies” JSC management responsibilities for the preparation and
approval of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

The following statement which should be read together with the Auditor’s Responsibilities section of the
accompanying Independent Auditor's Report is made to distinguish the respective responsibilities of the Auditors

and Compa)ny management concerning the financial statements of “National Information Technologies” JSC (the
‘Company’).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of 31 December 2020, its performance, cash flows, and changes in equity
for the year then ended, under International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS').

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

. Selectjng appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;
. Applying reasonable judgments and estimates;

. Compliance with the requirements of the IFRS or disclosure of all material deviations from the IFRS in the
notes to the financial statements; and

. Preparation of the financial statements assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, except
where such an assumption is unlawful.

Management is also responsible for:

. Design, implementation, and ensuring reliable internal control in the Company;

. Record keeping that allows at any time to present the information on the Company’s financial position with
a sufficient degree of accuracy and ensuring financial statements comply with IFRS requirements;

. Record keeping under the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

. Taking all reasonable efforts falling within the management competence to ensure the safety of Company
assets;
. Mismanagement detection and prevention.

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approved for issue by “National Information
Technologies” JSC management on 30 Juli 2021.

On behalf of Company manageéh;t/:\i,,._ <

Konyashkin R. A. W A.S.
Chairman of the Board ad of Accounting Department - Chief Accountant
30 July 2021

.\'..‘ bb\. <4 i ",'/
30 July 2021 s DR s
t =~ Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan

Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhs ah\\:_
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the equity holders and management of “National Information Technologies” JSC

Audit conclusion
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of “National Information Technologies” JSC (the ‘Company’) which
comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2020, statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statement

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statement management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern, and using the going concern

basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

TOB3PHILECTBO € OrPaHHYEHHON OTBETCTIOHHOCTHIO “BDO K |, 3aperuc B COOTBETCTEMM C IAKOHOAATE/LCTOM Pecybniu Kasaxcraw,
RBARCTCA YNACTHMKOM MEHRYHAPOAHOr0 06veuneniA BDO International Limited, 6puTancikoro 061 eCTBa C OTDETCTBEHHOCTL, OFPaHAYSHHON MAPANTHeA ero
YHACTHAKOB, M ABARETCA Y2CTHIO i ceTm BIX # BDO.

BDO Kazakhstan, a limited liability partnership, registered under the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK
company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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. Obtain an understanding of the internal control system that is relevant for the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management; ;
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

pce regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

We communicate with those chare 3
g any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

of the audit and significant 3
during our audit.

Qualified Auditor of the Republic of Kazakhstan

Auditor Qualifying Certificate No. 0000237
issued by the Qualification Commission for
Certification of Potential Auditors of the

Republic of Kazakhstan on 29 April 1996

BDO Kazakhstan LLP

afy 2015 for audit activities as issued by the Committee on Financial
2Republic of Kazakhstan
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National Information Technologijes Jsc

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LQss AN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 p
(In thousands of Kazakhst,

D OTHER ¢
ECEMBER 2020 OMPREHENSIVE INCOME

an tenge)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2020 2019
Sales revenue
Cost of sales 5 43,568,665 41,384,961
6 (33,560,882) (33,548,081)
Gross profit
10,007,783 7,836,880
Selling expenses
P 19,885) (34,141)
Administrative expenses 3 2
Other income z “ 2;?16 53;1;'_‘: i ,3235287(3
Other expenses ) )

P 8 (113,315) (303,673)
Operating profit 8,893,674 6,259,591
Foreign currency translation difference, net 5,849 (555)
?nance income 9 985,144 967,167

inance costs 10 (589,981) (86,365)
Profit before tax 9,294,686 7,139,838
Income tax expenses 1 (1,949,235) (1,857,246)
Profit for the year 7,345,451 5,282,592
Other comprehensive income 7,345,451 5,282,592
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 7,345,451 5,282,592

Signed and approved for issue on behalf of management:

=

Konyashkin R. A.
Chairman of the Board

30 July 2021 1 L\ a T El
Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan ™.\ &
\ W

W\ .\
N

Notes on pages 9 to 48 are an integral part of t_l]e/se,ﬂﬁanaal statements

30 July 2021

‘ Mva A.S.
. "Head of Accounting Department - Chief Accountant

/| Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan
/
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National Information Technologies JSC

ENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020

(in thousands of K| azakhstan tenge)
31 December 1 January 2019
31 December 2019
Notes 2020 (restated)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 22,604,397 23,016,097 3,128,279
Cash in credit institutions S ” 22,699,000
Other current financial assets 13 19,651 28,979 27,492
Trade receivables 14 220,800 179,560 246,493
Inventories 15 210,624 211,904 163,208
prepayments made 2,884 553 1,698
VAT recoverable 16 1,324,886 558,979 333,984
Other taxes prepaid 24,674 4,919 7,827
Income tax prepaid 1 1 369,763
Other current assets 17 560,686 559,055 343,318
Total current assets 24,968,603 24,560,047 27,321,062
Assets held-for-sale - 4,756 17,512
Non-current assets
Long-term receivables 431 1,294
Financial assets at amortized cost 18 81,260 73,206 63,875
Property, plant and equipment 19 11,998,918 10,328,850 10,158,857
Right-of-use assets 20 4,768,627 3,185,652 3
Intangible assets 21 2,424,373 2,740,700 1,381,463
Other non-current assets 51,642 129,108 -
Total non-current assets 19,324,820 16,457,947 11,605,489
TOTAL ASSETS 44,293,423 41,022,750 38,944,063
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade payables 22 11,037,520 12,091,856 16,356,518
employee benefits 23 804,822 748,488 804,730
Current lease liabilities 20 1,717,953 688,633 =
Contract liabilities 14,614 13,177 11,123
Provisions 24 31,753 150,129 -
Corporate income tax payable 54,589 188,344 -
Other current liabilities 25 245,155 307,940 597,133
Total current liabilities 13,906,406 14,188,567 17,769,504
Non-current liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities 20 3,503,602 2,534,779 <
peferred tax liabilities 1 281,528 643,719 459,129
Total non-current liabilities 3,785,130 3,178,498 459,129
EQUITY
Share capital 2% 13,497,723 13,497,723 13,486,791
Retained eamings 13,104,164 10,157,962 7,228,639
Total equity 26,601,887 23,655,685 20,715,430
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,293,423 41,022,750 38,944,063

Signed and approved for issue on beha/lf«( gement' -

N

Konyashkin R. A. '.'l & Sfaagdlova A. S.
Chairman of the Board ED -, i ‘Head of Accounting Department - Chief Accountant

30 July 2021 ' 30 July 2021
Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan

Notes on pages 9 to 48 are an integral part of these fmancial statements




National Information Technologies JSC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(In thousands of Kazakhstan tenge)

Note Total equ
Share capital Retained earnings equhy
Balance as of 1 January 2019 13,486,791 7,228,639 20,715,430
Adjustments = 246,731 246,731
Balance as of 1 January 2019 13,486,791 7,475,370 20,962,161
Profit for the year . 5,282,592 5,282,592
Transactions with equity holders 26 10,932 . 10,932
Dividends distribution 26 . (2,600,000) (2,600,000)
Balance as of 31 December 2019 13,497,723 10,157,962 23,655,685
Profit for the year - 7,345,451 7,345,451
Dividends distribution 26 - (4,399,249) (4,399,249)
Balance as of 31 December 2020 13,497,723 13,104,164 26,601,887

Signed and approved for issue on behalf o(/management' ' '\

Konyashkin R. A. __ _Sfaagdlova A. S.

Chairman of the Board 1 ES Head of Accounting Department - Chief Accountant
30 July 2021 ‘.,x 30 July 2021

Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan AR \—/ e NurfSultan Republic of Kazakhstan

\ /
~

Notes on pages 9 to 48 are an integral part of these se financial statements




National Information TechnOIOgies JSC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMB
(In thousands of Kazakhstan teng?} 2020

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Prepaid expenses amortisation

Atc;:xrz:l of provision for unused vacations, bonuses, and related

Me:ﬁ:}alzfn ;t;srowsion for impairment of receivables, cash and cash
Reversal of provision for cash

Afec;a‘la::l.:i ;;owslon for tax liabilities (CIT), audit services, and
Accrual of provision for non-liquid assets

Write-off of intangible assets ang property, plant and equipment
Income from reversal of impairment loss

Income from assets disposal

Write-off of provision for non-liquid inventories

Loss from assets disposal

Other income

Finance costs

Finance income

Other adjustments

Cash flow from operatin,

g activities before changes in working
capital

Changes in trade and other receivables
Changes in inventories

Change in prepayments made

Change in VAT recoverable

Change in other taxes prepaid

Change in other current, financial assets, other non-current and
current assets

Change in payables

Change in liabilities to employees

Change in taxes and other obligatory payments
Change in other current liabilities

Cash from operating activities

Income tax paid
Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment
Repayment of long-term financial investments
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Notes

6,7

12
12

o o

10

2020 A1
(restated)
9,294,687 7,139,736
3,795,139 2,165,919
774,494 536,756
356,020 315,272
56,982 129,517
(131,411)

26,702 131,311
6,305 10,775

- 11,652

(6,317) (7,458)
(7,922) (8,282)

. (1,963)

12,633 .
(34,028) (13,365)
589,981 86,365
(985,145) (967,167)

- (218,378)
13,748,120 9,310,690
(35,701) 0,756
(132,609) (176,253)
(33,226) 1,738
(633,411) (224,996)
(45,029) 2,909
83,131 (340,907)
(1,817,670) (4,568,249)
(269,363) (40,016)
(63,019) (52,298)
(143,876) 68,744
10,657,347 4,042.118
(2,299,493) (1,168,470)
831,160 815,718
(589,981) (86,365)
8,599,033 3,603,001
(171,226) (1,201,803)
(3,366,851) (2,430,518)
- 5,382
(3,538,077) (3,626,939)




National Information Technologies JSC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CO
(In thousands of Kazakhstan tenge) (CONTINUED)

2019
Foanckip actividies Notes 2020 (restated)
Dividends paid % (4,399,249) (2,600,000)
Right-of-use assets liabilities payment 1,080,341
Net cash used in financing activities (; '479 1590; (2 (71:11 fgg

) L ') b

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (418,634) (2,785,540)
Effect of foreign currency exchange rates on tenge 1 134 ’ ,(441)
Effect of change in cash and cash equivalents carrying value slsoo (25,201)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of reporting period 23,016,097 25,827,279
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of reporting period 12 22,604,397 23,016,097

signed and approved for issue on behalf of '?‘Qe/"!enl:’ N\

S8 "\""h{\ \

5 €% %2
156 -4 :

Konyashkin R. A. 4 ( &S e'\: ' smagfilovaA. S.

Chairman of the Board - Lrj-lgad of Accounting Department - Chief Accountant

\E n i1 ot
\ \ Ll 1"
30 July 2021 _ \ ‘\.\ 30 July 2021
Nur-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan \ "5 MNuf-Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan

Notes on pages 9 to 48 are an integral part of these financial's atements
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National Information Technologies Jsc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(In thousands of Kazakhstan tenge)

1. NATURE OF ACTIVITY

“National Information T fach :
of the Republic of Kazakehcs'tl::glgz]t?d AJSC (?\e Company’) was established following the Decree of the Government
Republic of Kazakhstan. The compan April 2000, No. 492 On the Development of a Single Information Space in the
Stock Companies No. 415 of 13 Maypzog3wgsnﬁ;r§a"?’fd£llovg?go the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan On Joint
joint- i y -registered on ctobe ; 8

joint-stock company assigned by the Ministry of Justice of the Republic o:r %(?;‘;k:gir the number 9922-1901.0f the
T::tg::elr:‘:::{l’?:::;g°:;ﬂ°““f“8 “Zerde” JSC is the sole shareholder of the Company (the ‘Sole Shareholder’).
of the Republic of Kazakhsga ic of Kazakhstan, represented by the Committee on State Property and Privatization
vt the Siate cumad blockn'f ls;the founder of the Sole Shareholder of the Company. The rights of ownership and
according to the Decree of tI?e Goa\:;sn?;et:f ?ﬁSh;reholder of the Company, owned by the Republic of Kazakhstan,
of the Ministry of Information and Commni e Republic of Kazakhstan dated 16 June 2016, No. 353 Some issues

AN cations of the Republic of Kazakhstan were transferred to the authorized
body for state property, the Ministry of Information and Communications of the Republic Kazakhstan.

2ytthe De:drete ?,L tl:‘e Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 29 January 2016, No. 40, the Company was
etermined to the operator of the information and communication infrastructure of the "electronic government”
and according to the decree of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 26 February 2016, No. 118, the
Company was determined as the Unified Contact Center. Also, by the Decree of the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhgtan dated 31 Deceml:ter 2015, No. 1177, the Company was determined to be the operator of these control
meters in the field of production of ethyl alcohol and alcoholic products, the production and circulation of petroleum
products and by the Decree of the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 22 August 2019, No. 621. the

company was determir?ed the operator of a unified information system for the mandatory technical inspection of
motor vehicles and trailers for them.

By the _Decvree of thg govemment of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 11 November 2016, No. 696 On the
reorganization of the joint-stock company National Information Technologies and National Company Kazsatnet JSC
(NC Kazsatnet JSC) was merged with the Company with the transfer of all property, rights, and obligations.

The Company is registered at 55/15 Mangilik Yel avenue, Yessil District, Nur-Sultan, 010000, Republic of Kazakhstan.

Following the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan On Informatization, which entered into force on 01 January 2016,
the Company is engaged in the following core activities:

1) Ensuring compliance with common requirements in the field of information and communication technologies and
information security and the rules for implementing the service model of informatization;

2) Provision of the system and technical maintenance and support of Internet resources of state bodies and objects
of information and communication infrastructure of ‘electronic government’ following the list approved by the
authorized body;

3) Engagement of objects of information and communication infrastructure of other persons for the development of
information and communication infrastructure of ‘electronic government’, other persons for the maintenance and
system-technical maintenance of information systems of state bodies;

4) Provision of information and communication services to state bodies based on the information and communication
infrastructure of ‘electronic government’ following the catalog of information and communication services;

5) Ensuring the safety of storage of state electronic information resources located on the information and
communication infrastructure of the ‘electronic government’ assigned to the operator.

6) Ensuring the safety of storage of state electronic information resources in the provision of information and
communication services;

7) Prompt responding to identified shortcomings in the provision of information and communication services, and
public services in electronic form and the adoption of measures to eliminate them;

8) Free of charge provision at the request of the service integrator of ‘electronic government’, infgrmation_ and
communication infrastructure for the development and testing of service software products by potential suppliers;
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National Information Technologies JSC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

(In thousands of Kazakhstan tenge)

tion facilities to the ‘electronic government’

connects local (except local networks with

puring integration connecting of ‘electronic government’ informatiza
of state bodies to information and

gateway and the national gateway of the Republic of Kazakhstan, and
Internet access), departrpental, and corporate telecommunications networks
communication ‘electronic government’ infrastructure;

9)

their subordinate organizations, local governments, and
onnected to the unified transport environment
formation systems; for the provision
ontractors) of services;

10) Provision o‘f cqmmunication services to state bodies,
other infom_\atlzatlon entities defined by the authorized body and ¢
of state bodies, for the operation of their electronic information resources and in

of communication services, has the right to attract other persons as subcontractors (co-C
and

11) Creation and development of the information and communication platform of the ‘electronic government’
the unified transport environment of state bodies;

12) Support and system and technical maintenance of the national gateway of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

12-1) Support and system and technical maintenance of the root certification center of the Rgpuplic of Kazakhstan,
the certification center of state bodies of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the national certification center of the
Republic of Kazakhstan, and a trusted third party of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

13) Uploading content of the web portal of ‘electronic government’ with electronic information resources provided
by state bodies and other entities providing services in electronic form;

14) Advisory to state bodies in the development of information and communication infrastructure facilities of
‘electronic government’;

ing projects for the development of objects of information and communication infrastructure of ‘electronic

15) Manag
eway of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

government’ and the national gat
and transfer of electronic information resources for data analytics to implement

16) Collection, processing, storage,
determined by the authorized body.

the functions of government agencies as
In the course of its activities, the Company uses the following licenses:

« State license to certify the conformity of the public key of an electronic digital signature to the private key
to confirm the validity of the registration certificate ABA No. 001300

of an electronic digital signature,
dated 12 June 2006, issued by the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan on Informatization and

Communications;
state license for the provision of T telephony (Internet telephony) ABA No. 002170 dated 26 August 2009,

issued by the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan on Informatization and Communications;
State license for data transmission ABA No. 000685 dated 02 December 2004, issued by the Agency of the

Republic of Kazakhstan for Informatization and Communications;
License No. 072 of 06 March 2019, issued by the National Security Committee of the Republic of Kazakhstan

for the provision of services to detect technical channels of information leakage and special technical means
for carrying out operational and investigative activities.

As of 31 December 2020, the average number of employees of the Company amounted to 1,750 people (31 December
2019: 2,038 people).

These financial statements of the Company were approved for issue on 30 July 2021, by the Chairman of the Board
and the Head of the Accounting Department - the Chief Accountant. The presented financial statements are included

in the consolidated financial statements of the Sole Shareholder.

10
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National Information Technologies Jsc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(In thousands of Kazakhstan tenge) (CONTINUED)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of presentation financial statements

Functional and presentation currency

The fut)ctional currency of the Company is Kazakhstan tenge (‘tenge’), which, being the national currency of the
Republic of Ka.zakhstan, best reflef:ts t.he economic nature of the majority of operations carried out by the Company
and related circumstances affecting its activities. Kazakhstan tenge is also the presentation currency for these

financial statements. The financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand tenges. The financial statements
present comparative information for the previous period.

Transactions and events in foreign currency

Transactions and events in foreign currency are recorded in the national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan
using the market exchange rate. Exchange differences arising in the calculation of monetary items or in the
translation of monetary items at rates different from the rates at which they were translated at initial recognition
during the reporting period are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The following table shows the exchange rates in tenge for the following dates:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
usD 420.71 381.8
Russian rouble 5.65 6.7
Euro 516.13 426.85

Operating environment

The Republic of Kazakhstan continues to carry out economic reforms and develop its legislative tax and regulatory
framework as required by the conditions of a market economy. The future stability of the Kazakhstan economy is
more dependent on these reforms and the development of the effectiveness of economic-financial and monetary
measures undertaken by the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Kazakhstan economy is sensitive to a
decline in business activity and a slowdown in economic development in the world. The impact of the global crisis
caused by the COVID 19 coronavirus pandemic can lead to instability in the capital market and a significant
deterioration in liquidity in the banking sector.

Although the government of Kazakhstan introduced several stabilization measures aimed at supporting the economy
of Kazakhstan, nevertheless, there is uncertainty regarding the access to capital and the cost of capital for the
Company and its counterparties, which may affect the financial position of the Company, the results of its activities
and economic prospects.

Although management is confident that it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the
Company's operations in the current environment, unforeseen further deterioration in the areas described above
may have a negative impact on the financial results and financial position of the Company in a way that is not
currently identifiable.

"
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National Information Technologies Jsc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMB
(In thousands of Kazakhstan tengi? 2020 (CONTINUED)

Going concern

The financial statements hav.

continuing operations, which easgsem“e?;ipared on the assumption that the Company will adhere to the principle of
be able to realize its assets and vy off tastdt:;tsCompany_wi‘ll contjnug to operate in the foreseeable future and will
or need to liquidate or substantially reduce futurae“gpf:gltlil o‘ri obligations. The Company does not have the intention

The accompanying financial statem i j
idh e ke ents do not contain the adjustments necessary if the Company could not continue

Cost basis

These financial statements have been
prepared in general following historical cost ac ri ; fail
measurement has been used for certain items of the financial stategments. ok Ll ey

': raa];:aac!ltlizri\s g:tfwsnafntahri eatmuung that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a voluntary
clis oIS Hetaiats =:>amc1p_ants at the measurement date, regardless of the direct observability of this
{assified by levels de n using a different method. In preparing the statements, the fair value measurement is
cla y levels depending on the observability of the source data and their materiality for the assessment:

¢ Level 1 - quoted prices (without adjustments) for the same assets and liabilities in an active market that
the Company can observe at the valuation date;

. :.:(;lif‘lagtl.yl'mtlal data that does not correspond to Level 1, but is observed for an asset or liability directly or

¢ Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

Recognition of elements of financial statements

The ac_companying financial statements include all transactions and events that meet definition of elements of the
financial statements and the condition for their recognition:

o The company is largely confident that any economic benefits associated with the facility will be received

(or lost);
e The object has a value or value that can be measured reliably.

All elements of the financial statements are presented in the accompanying statement of financial position and
statement of comprehensive income in the form of articles. The combination of several elements of financial
statements in one article was made taking into account their characteristics (functions) in the activities of the

Company.

Order of presentation

The presentation and classification of items in the financial statements are retained from the current period to the
next. A significant review of the presentation of the financial statements may require changes to the presentation
of the financial statements. A Company makes changes to the presented financial statements only if the amended
presentation gives such information that is reliable and more significant for users of the financial statements, while
the revised structure will be preserved and the comparability of information will not be affected.

New standards, interpretations, and amendments to existing standards and interpretations

me of the new standards and interpretations effectiv
turely apply the standards,

e for the annual periods beginning on

The Company adopted so
clarifications, or amendments issued

or after 1 January 2020. The Company did not prema
but were not yet effective.
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pefinition of a Business - Amendments to IFRS 3

The amendments to IFRS 3 clari :
eiude, at a minimum, an inpu:yatr:,;tat:ugse tacon.ndered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must
create output. ntive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to

They also clarify that a busi ist wi "
These amen drants did L::;':eas:f:‘: ir’::lcvglnghz:‘t inc}udmg'all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
Company will be a party to a business Combir?aug:‘s, inancial statements but can be applied in the future if the

Definition of Material - Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8

Qm:#‘r;wr::i s;:;gg:gs :t:ro!t)h;ur:: c_itefinition of material. The new definition states that 'Information is material if
b |'>urpose ﬁna’n ity mév, 1t could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
s reptviine i .n “s..e m:;ee ::sng! gn llhosfey fti'r:ancial statements, which provide financial information

. I r . nts clari at materiality will depend on the nature or quantity of
L?etlr:z:gatlgg s(ct:rl:ﬁn !intfo account separately or in combination with other information) as a whole in thl finar?!:ial
:t:t:ments.users L é enar‘:\::zt::n;s ;1%nlﬁcant if it is expected to influence the decisions of the main financial
s el Py s did not affect the financial statements of the Company and the impact is not

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16

On 2.8‘May 2020, the IASB amgnded IFRS 16 to provide relief to lessees from applying the IFRS 16 guidance on lease
modifications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient
a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A
lessee t!\at makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent
concession ghe same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16 if the change were not a lease modification.
A lessee will apply the amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 June 2020. Earlier
application is permitted. This amendment will not affect the Company’s financial statements.

standards issued but not yet effective

The following are the new standards, amendments, and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective as of the Company financial statements issue date. The Company intends to adopt these standards,
amendments, and interpretations, if applicable when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation, and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life,
direct insurance, and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.
The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and
consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous
local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant

accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

n for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

. A specific adaptatio
h (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

o A simplified approac

rting periods starting on or after 01 January 2023, with comparative figures required.

IFRS 17 is effective for repol
d IFRS 15 on or before the date it first

Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 an
applies IFRS 17.

IFRS 17 does not apply to the Company.
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent - Amendments to IAS 1

In January 2020, the IASB i
o specif;ythe i quement:st%‘;c'clame_“dments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
assifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement;
That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

That only if an embedded deriy ible liability i ity i
of liability not impact its classifaftci:tei ;: .a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument, would the terms

These amendments are effective for annual peri

: riods be
retro;pecglvely. '_l‘he_ _Company is currently estir‘:reating the
classification of liabilities and the need to revise the terms

ginning on or after 01 January 2023 and are applied
potential impact of these amendments on the current
of existing loan agreements.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework - Amendments to IFRS 3

avoid the issue of potential “day 2” gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies if incurred
separately. At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do
not ‘qugllfy for recognition at the acquisition date. The amendments are effective for the annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2022 and must be applied prospectively.

It is expected that these amendments will not significantly impact the Company.
Property, Plant, and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to 1AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use’.
The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment (PP&E),
any proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from
selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss. The amendment must be applied
retrospectively to the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022, and only to items of PP&E
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendment.

It is expected that these amendments will not significantly impact the Company.
Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to IAS 37

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets to specify
which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss~making. The amendme.rnts
apply a “directly related cost approach’. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provude.goods or services
include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendment is effective for annual periods begmrpng on or afger 01 January
2022. The Company will apply these amendments to contracts for W'hiC!’l it has not yet satisfied all of its obligations
as of the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies these amendments.

14
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Fees in the “10 per cent”

te:
Instruments st for derecognition of financial liabilities - Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial

The amendments clarify that for the so-calleq
should be derecognized, an entity should only co
the lender, including fees paid or received by the borrower or lender on behalf of another party.

An entity shall apply the amendment to financial liabi :
reporting period in which the entity first applie?:llw;‘:?r:le‘::s mg:‘c;d\ﬁed or replaced at the beginning of the annual

“10 per cent” test which determines whether a financial liability
nsider fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and

The amendment is effective for annual
permitted.

The amendments to the definition of material are
statements.

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with early application

not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial

3. OVERVIEW OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Classification of assets and liabilities into current/non-current

In the statement of financial position, the Company presents assets and liabilities based on their classification as
current/non-current. An asset is current if:

o It 1:5 supposeq to be realized or it is intended for sale or consumption within the normal operating cycle;
« Itis held mainly for trading purposes;

« Itis supposed to be lmplemenged within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or

« It represents cash or cash equivalents, unless there are restrictions on its exchange or use to repay obligations,
valid for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current if:

. It is supposed to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

. It is held primarily for trading purposes;

. It is subject to settlement within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or

. The organization does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the obligation for at least twelve

months after the end of the reporting period.

The terms of the obligation, according to which it can be, at the discretion of the counterparty, settled by issuing
and transferring equity instruments, do not affect the classification of this obligation.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. The initial cost
of assets consists of the purchase or construction price, any costs directly related to bringing the asset into working
condition, and an initial estimate of the cost of liquidating the asset, if necessary. The acquisition or construction
price is the aggregate value paid and the fair value of any consideration provided to acquire the asset.

If it is necessary to replace significant components of property, plant, and equipment at regular intervals,. the
Company recognizes the components as separate assets with corresponding individual tefms_ of use and dgpreglates
them accordingly. Similarly, during a major technical inspection, the costs associated with it are rga_:ogngd in the
carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment as a replacement for equipmgnt if all recognition criteria are
met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Construction in progress is the construction in progress of property, plant, and equipment carried at cost.

Construction in progress includes construction costs, equipment, and other direct costs. _Construction in progress is
not amortized until the construction of the related assets is completed and they are put into operation.
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eciation of property, plant, and equipment, excluding land and construction in progress, is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

Asset group Useful lives

Buildings 40 years
Facilities 10-20 years
Machines and equipment 4-10 years
vehicles 5-10 years
Other 3-10 years

The estimated useful lives of property, plant, and equipment may be reviewed on an annual basis and, if necessary,
changes in the terms are adjusted in subsequent periods. The carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment is
reviewed for lmpalrrpgnt any events or changes in circumstances occur that indicate that the carrying value is not
recoverable. Recognition of an item of property, plant, and equipment ceases after its disposal or if future economic
penefits from its use or disposal are no longer expected. Any income or expenses arising from the derecognition of
an asset (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the asset)
is inclu:ded in the statement of comprehensive income in the reporting period in which the derecognition of the asset
occurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that were acquired separately are initially measured at the initial cost. The initial cost of intangible
assets is the total amount paid and the fair value of any other property, plant, and equipment provided for the
acquisition of the asset. The initial cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at
the acquisition date. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets include licenses, computer software, and development
costs.

Intangible assets with a limited useful life are amortized over the amortisation period and are assessed for
jmpairment if there is any indication that the intangible asset is impaired. The period and method of amortisation
for an intangible asset with a limited useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in
the estimated useful lives or estimated consumption patterns of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
reflected in the financial statements as a change in the period or method of amortisation, as appropriate, and are
accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Amortisation expenses on intangible assets with a limited useful
ife are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the category of expenses that corresponds to the
function of the intangible asset.

Amortisation of intangible assets, except assets under development, is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
following useful lives:

Asset group Useful life
Licenses 1-10 years
Software 1-10 years

The income or expense from the write-off of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net
proceeds from the disposal of the asset and the current value of the asset and is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income at the time the asset is written off.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising from product-specific development costs are
recognized only when the Company can demonstrate:

The technical feasibility of creating an intangible asset so that the asset is available for use or sale;

Intention to complete development of the intangible asset and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset;
Asset’s ability to generate future economic benefits;

Availability of sufficient resources for exploration completion;

Ability to reliably evaluate costs related to the intangible asset during development;

Ability to use the created intangible asset.
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:itjal recognition of development costs as an asset, assets aré carried at cost ess accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. An asset is depreciated when development is complete, the asset is available

and is produced during the future economic benefits estimated period- Depreciation is recorded as part of
t of sales. The asset is tested for impairment annually.

rment of non-financial assets

Jmpai
At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is evidence of a possible impairment of the asset.
dicators occur, or if annual impairment of the asset is required, the Company assesses the recoverable
tested annually for

ot depreciated but areé
The recoverable amount of an asset or 3

impa 3 1 A

cash-generalmg unit (CGU) is the higher of the following fair values of the asset (CGU) less the cost of sale and the
value in use of the asset (CGU). The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the inflows generated by other assets or groups of assets.
if the camng qmwnt of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and vdeducted from its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, future cash flows are
discounlef’ .at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions (if any) are taken

into account. In their absence, an appropriate assessment model is applied.

|f such in .
f the asset. Intangible assets at the development stage are n

amount ©
. airment regardless of the presence/absence of signs of impairment.

of inventories) are recognized in the statement

ent losses for continuing operations (including impairment
ction of the impaired asset.

|mpairm
ss as an expense category that corresponds to the fun

of profit or lo
ancial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Fin
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to @ financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument in another entity.

Financial assets
[nitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, at initial recognition, are classified as subsequently me: i
\ ki s asured at i
other comprehensive income (0C1), and fair value through profit oryloss. amprdzest cost (RE VRIS thootgh

The classification of financial assets upon initial reco iti
I K gnition depends on the char isti i

flow a%reemer}t fgr the financial asset anq the business model used by the Compani/c:grr‘vst:r‘\::gsélg:’é:;eadssz{sthgxcash
for tra T recel:jl'a ltes,t ':vhich do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Compan has. Cl?pctl
pract:Jcraed e:?efa‘ifnva,luee LEompany lm_tlally measures financial assets at fair value, increased for financ?al assaelig ‘et
:ge:isﬁ e g o ;g:g:[p::ﬁfto?rwtzis; lg:?enses on the deal. Trade receivables that do not contai:oa
r ¢ ) ompany h i i ilitati
transaction price, as described in the Revenue from cont:Pact)s, wialiw zsgtl;en(\’er’;ri:gtcig:\ facRatEn aze messifed] Sk
For a financial asset to be classified and measured i
_ 1 at amortized cost or fair value thr i
Lr}cg::c'i :;le ac::ti;att;t:lez:lt'fe;:‘n:htg this asset must determine the receipt of cash flows, v:'):l%'r]\ g:ze'l:sg?er? i
and is carried out at the level of e::hpia':tsﬂtrur;\::‘[:al'%o;;iqni Th\‘sta;sessment ftcalad e o (10 testy(ggmizg

d s at . cial assets for which ¢ ¥
criterion are classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss regarcaii:s:lg?::eo&?sti:;sesetrnth: lcash flows”

, odel.

The business model used by the Com i

1 U pany to manage financial i

¢ al assets describ i

r:\cag;‘t ofascsoen[tsra:gtssrg?s:\e ﬂc:vsv: f:?‘ws. The business model determines whetheei :g\s,; tf?:wgoﬂﬁany sl

i R iihi thé fr*emseale of financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified g b

to obtain contractual cash flows {:nhlw o;'-( o tt\e business model, the purpose of which is to helda;is meqwred 2%

comprehensive income are held wi;;hin tjhi f:::'\rlrcvlva‘ kassfe:; cézssified 8s reRawed ot fav valoue tp‘:::;ahl asts:ts
o ork of the busi i other

obtaining the cash flows stipulated by the contract and by sellin:?ie:;n'z;?eals,smg BeRLOfWRIEY S Sievo bt By

All transactions of purchase or sale of financi
ancial assets that require the deli
elivery of assets within the peri
period established

by law or following the rules ado i i
pted in a particular m i
Dy Lo o ahen the Company ndertakes to buy or sl a::ﬁst are recognized at the date of the transaction, i.e., at
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For subsequent measurement, financial assets i

: i ar ied i )

Financial assets measured at amortized coestctzgftl?:sl?sr’r;o:tr )Categones:
S)s

: Financial assets at fair value thr

ough foas
;Fcumylla fhd SOl 0l losses (dant %nsg::‘:,;:g)nprehenme income with the subsequent reclassification of
2 inancial assets classified at the discreti 3 o)

i : scretion of th g
comprehensive income with e organization as mea

out subsequent reclassification of accu::gf;:e;t fgaa’:n:al::dtqrough ot
osses upon

d.ereCo.gnition (equity instruments);
Financial assets at fair value throug'h profit or loss

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets measured at amortized
i cost are subse
impairment requirements a ly t : quently measured usin =)
pply to them. Gains or losses are recognized in pro f%tt:rel :sfsfei?m: ;::ee{eis;;nethod, and
s derecognized,

modified, or impaired.

The Company classifies trade receivables
financial assets measured at amortized co’s tlf.‘vng-term bonds receivable, and cash placed with credit institutions as

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through ;
K profit or loss are carried i }
and net changes in their fair value are recognized in the sta:‘:rjn:'n:';ef ;tr:‘s)tf}stn:,ernlt of financial position at fair value,
0s5.

This category includes derivatives and inv
i i i i ) estments in ity i )
discretion classify, without the right of quoted equity instruments, which the ;
e cancellation, as , which the Company did not at its
Dividends on quoted equity ins , as measured at fair value throu i
equity instruments are recognized as other income in the statggg;g‘gfc::)‘g;e:re lnoss’:ewi:cor::

en the

right to receive dividends is established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable
e - , part of a financi Ly 2
derecognized (i.e., o (ed from the statarmart of ﬁna:g;la;;;tﬁg; ;):afr.t of a group of similar financial assets) is

8 I:g gglr:rt;atr?yrg-caewfe cas: flows from the asset have expired; or
= nsferred its rights to receiv ;
Rt flows L ceive cash flows from the asset or i
i e tln lfull and Mthout significant delay under the "transit’t‘I e t(? Eate _thll'd Ry
@ Uil ro;u at\ | of the risks and rewards of the asset, or O e
e i i
. it does not retain practically all of the, risks and benefits of the asset, but transferred

control of the asset.

If the Company transferred its rights to recei
> : eceive cash flows fr ;
assesses whether it re! ; ; om the asset or ent :
i the Company has notta::ae;:’s ft:: e?ksb ang benefits associated with the ownership er:::t";t:da itfrsgﬂtt agrheemm' 4
not transferred control of the asset’ ¢ :t Cas not retained practically all the risks and be'nefifs of ti:eo e
Continues to participate in it. In thi; caie i’::acl:)):ncsan:;n:les to recognize the transferred asset to thea;xsf;r’mta rt‘t?a:ai:
asset and related liabi ; so recognizes the corre: ing liabili
bility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and oblisg%(;?:rl:grehtaa?:;?g r:ﬁ t?mfe"ed
e Company.

Continuing participation, which takes the for

; - 4 m of a guarantee f ;

the initial carl § or the transfe

carrying amount of the asset or the maximum amount of consider;rte;gna:ls\ztt, 'l:al';\ia:l:ﬁ‘?géhte lg:’er x
red to be paid

by the Company.
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Impairment
The Company recognizes the estimated al| ’
not measured at fair value through prOmO:ra:\ce for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments that are

flows due under the contract and all cash ﬂow°55- ECLs are calculated based on the difference between the cash
effective interest rate or its approximate valye, Pany expects to receive, discounted using the original

tso i > perio
reporting date. However, in the event of a s na ﬁ“af}dal instrument that are possible within ‘12 months after the
0s
losses for the entire term, s allowance is estimated at the amount equal to the expected credit
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition i i ial liabiliti i
or loss, loans, and borrowings, payables, or de%ivativé Sr.espectwely, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fai i i
directly related to transaction costs. : I value, less (in the case of loans, borrowings, and payables)

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.
Subsequent measurement
For the subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified into the foll

S Fi‘nancﬁal liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss;
. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost (loans and borrowings).

owing two categories:

Derecognition

The recognitio_n of a 'f}napcial liability is terminated if the obligation is settled, canceled, or has expired. If an
existing financial llgbl‘llty is replaced by another obligation to the same lender on substantially different tern'\s or if
the terms of the existing obligation are significantly changed, such a replacement or changes are taken into account
as the derecognition of the initial obligation and the beginning of recognition of a new obligation, and the difference
in their carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. ;

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and'financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial
position when there is a currently legally protected right to offset recognized amounts and when there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, realize assets, and at the same time pay off liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes funds in current bank accounts and deposits with a maturity of up to 3 months. Cash in credit
institutions in the statement of financial position has an initial maturity of up to one year.

Reverse repurchase agreements
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse repo”) are recorded as cash and cash equivalents. The
difference between the purchase and resale prices represents interest income and is accrued over the term of the

“reverse repo” agreement using the effective interest method. If assets purchased under an agreement to resell are
sold to third parties, the obligation to return securities is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.
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Accounts receivable

ts receivable are reflected in the financial statem, initial i
g;o‘;ut;‘u { debts. For provisions for doubtfe) ents' at the initial inv

ision for receivables is periodically reviewed and. if necessary, ad i
::me eriod when they become known, ) ry, adjustments are recorded as an expense (income)

C ny establishes provisions for doubtful claims at the date of ion of inanci
Ig:‘lfovd?\;p& e requirements of IFRS 9 Financi| ate of preparation of the financial statements

Instruments.
Accounts recefvable are divided into a short-term debt, which must be repaid within one year of the operating cycle,
and long-term debt.
Inventories

Inventories are accounted for using the weighted average cost method. Inventories are valued at a lower cost or net
realizable value. Cost mdt_xdes expenses incurred in connection with the delivery and bringing of inventory to the
current state. The net realizable value of inven

; tories is based on the estimated selling price, net of costs associated
with the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized ifv the Company has a current obligation (legal or practical) arising from a past event, the
outflow of economic benefits that will be required to settle this obligation is probable, and a reliable estimate of
’ the Company intends to receive a reimbursement of provisions,
then the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only if the receipt of reimbursement is not in doubt.
The expense related to the provision is recognized in the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects the current mprket for the time value of money and, where possible, the risks associated with the liability.
Using discounting, an increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a financial expense.
Leases

At contract inception, the Company evaluates whether the agreement is a lease or whether it contains signs of a
lease. In other words, the Company determines whether the contract transfers the right to control the use of the
identified asset for a certain period in exchange for compensation.

The Company as a lessee

The Company takes a unified approach to the recognition and measurement of all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease obligations for making lease payments and
right-of-use assets that represent the right to use underlying assets,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at commencement of the lease (that is, the date on which the underlying
asset becomes available for use). Assets in the form of a right-o

f-use are measured at historical cost, less
accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, adjusted for revaluation of lease obligations. The
initial cost of right-of-use assets includes the recognized lease obligations, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments incurred on the date the lease commences or before that date, net of any incentive lease payments
recefved. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the

shorter of the following periods: the
lease term or the estimated useful life of the assets. Right-of-use assets are also tested for impairment.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement of the lease, the (g
value of the lease payments that my mpany recognizes lease obli
well as substantially fixed pamm;‘l:“ made during the lease term, Lz:?:"s that are measured at the present
that depend on the index or rate, and ths: :’z incentive payments on a (ease ‘:Zycmﬁ include fixed payments (as
yments also ipcludg the exercise it lhount that is expected to be paid on resid e.l variable lease payments
il exercise this option, and payment of S ;e purchase option, if there is S ual value guarantees, Lease
exercise by the Company of the option topte allies for terminating the lease if thee ? Confidence that the Company
index or rate are recognized as an e nsen?t:n?te iDe \anse. Variable leas'e Paymeen::eut:erm Dl the potentist
event or condition occurs that leads to the pay:\:::s‘mum for producing inventories) i:t tahr: :;fﬁﬁ rl‘dev::ﬂo fhthe
i n which an
To calculate the present value of the lease
nds on the date the lease begins sinen rro Tents, the Company y - 5
fu begins, since the interest rate hlgadgwﬁ;(::erla::s:f;;r:‘eﬁ :‘:d'm“al borrowed
Nt cannot be easily

determined. After the lease commence
decrease to reflect lease payments mac‘ement date, lease obligations increase to reflect interest accruals and
3 s an

Short-term leases and low-value assets leases

The Company applies the recogniti =

for whichF: at tthcommencent\)g:;tmgel:a&m for short-term leases to its short-term leases (that i

an option to purchase the undertying asset). Th, the lease term is not more than 12 months and whiach ;’ to contracts

of low-value assets to leases whose value is.coni(gg:zal';{lalio applies for the exemption from recognil?o:ofto:?:;:;:
i . Lease pa

value assets are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis gvey:n;r;t:ef:sres:::t";term leases and leases of Low-

The Company as a lessor

the period in which they are received.
Financial liabilities

For financial liabilities, the categories remain the same: i i
(el e ckida trade aid Sther poyubies me: at fair value and amortized cost. The Company’s financial

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at historical cost

The recognition of financial liability in the statement of financial position i :

. 2 3 position is terminated if ipati
canceled, or has expired. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another liabili|ty“t‘c‘aE ?I'?ehgs:x\li;n?mw'
substantially different conditions, or if the terms of the existing liability are significantly changed si:;.hon
o ;”thc"al%v““age.“:;“’"'gﬁ for 2 the derecogniton of the original labity and the beginning of
recognition of the n ability, and the difference in their carryin i el
comprehensive income. rying amount is recognized in the report about

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporti i i

porting date is determined based
on market quotes or dealer quotes (buy quotes for long positions and sell quotes for sh iti i
deducting transaction costs. 3 i gl i
For financial instruments that are not traded in an active market, fair value is determined by applying appropriate

valuation techpiques. The techniques may include the use of prices, recently completed commercial transactions,
the current fair value of similar instruments; discounted cash flow analysis, or other valuation models.
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pest evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is usually the transaction pri
that is, the fair value of t:he consideration paid or received. If the Company determines thaty the fair value at mltciii
ognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is not supported by current quoted prices in an
tive market for a similar asset or liability and is not based on valuation methods using only observable inputs, the
financial instrument is initially measured at fair value adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at
initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the difference is recognized in profit or loss

ately over the life of the instrument, but no later than whe ion i
‘a':;,pl::sp:r K T the transaction s completed. when the valuation is fully supported by observable

Income tax

|ncome tax includes current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that

it relates to items 'included in other comprehensive income and allocated to equity,
:) e orehensive incoime: equity, in which case it is recognized in

current income tax is calculated following the tax legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan and represe
amount that 1s expected to be paid or reimbursed from the state budget agzut taxable profit or loss fgl? the c"L::r;:et
and previous periods. Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method and reflects the tax effect of
all material temporary differences between the book value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the tax base of assets and liabilities determined for tax purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are

calculated at tax rates that apply to the period when the asset is realized/used iability i
rax rates that are effective at the reporting date. e or oo Ity ¥ siied Dived o0

Deferred income tax assets concerning temporary differences reducing the tax base and tax losses transferred to
future penogls are recognized only if there is a sufficient probability of future taxable profit that can be reduced by
such deductions. Deferred income tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include.short’term emplpyee benefits, salaries, social security contributions, annual paid leave
and sick leave, compensation, anq warranties provided for by the labor legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan,
bonuses, and non-monetary benefits, and other payments.

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits payable in exchange for the
services provided by the employee.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The activities of the Company are related to the following main types of work and services:

. Ensuring comPliance with common requirements in the field of information and communication technologies
and ensuring information security and the rules for implementing the service model of informatization;

. Systematic maintenance and support of Internet resources of state bodies and objects of informatio’n and
communication infrastructure of “electronic government” following the list approved by the authorized body;

. Provision of information and communication services to state bodies based on the information ané
communication infrastructure of “electronic government” following the catalog of information and
communication services;

. Provision of communication services to state bodies, their subordinate organizations, local self-government
bodies, and other informatization entities defined by the authorized body and connected to the unified
transport environment of state bodies, for the functioning of their electronic information resources and
information systems, etc.

Revenue in respect of core activities is recognized over a while (periodically), as the criteria for recognition of

revenue over the period are met, that is, the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Company.
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Y mers, as a rule, include one or several
pear on the same temporary bagls The Company does not have the effect of variable consideration as the
ich ar does not provide for other promises, which may constitute separate performance obligations (for example,
contractees’ reward points provided under the Customer oyalty program), for which it is necessary to distribute part
glf‘al';‘a: {ransaction price.
o

performance obligations,

le, the Company receives payments from customers after the

an ’shO rt-term advance payments. As a result of usin,
receives does not adjust the promised amount of compen:
compar':ent of financing, if at the time of conclusion of the
com

f the promised service to the customer and payment by t
o

provision of services. In rare cases,
g the practical simplification provided by
sation taking into account the influence of
contract it expects that the period between
he customer of the service will not exceed o

the Company
IFRS 15, the
a significant
the transfer

ne year,
Contract assets

t under the contract is the Companys right to receive compensation in exchange for services transferred to
An 3‘”6, If the Company transfers the services to the customer before the customer makes a reimbursement or
ﬁf"ﬂ,e' reimbursement becomes payable, the contractual asset is recognized in respect of the received
n
reimbursement.

Trade receivables

ivables represent the Company's right to compensation which is unconditional (i.e., the moment when such
Rece‘;:nsation is payable is due only to the passage of time). The accounting policies for financial assets are discussed
?: T;%s 9 Financial Instruments.

Contractual obligations

tual obligation is an obligation to transfer to the customer services (goods) for which the Company will
A coptrac refund (or received) from the customer, If the customer pays a refund before the Company transfers the
recelve & the customer, a contractual obligation is recognized at the time the payment is made or when the payment
ser\mr:':laetsopayab\e (whichever occurs earlier). Contractual obligations are recognized as revenue when the Company
lf):lﬁiolls its contractual obligations.

Other income and expenses

i i i i i ifferences
i ludes income in the form of income from disposal of assets, income from exchange rate di )
o:i\h # ;::Eg:: :rf‘icnes, penalties, income from the recovery of impairment losses on financial assets).
other
i i inanci i i ich they relate on
nized as incurred and recorded in the financial statements in the period to which
s i laragfscogs)(penses include expenses necessary to generate income (expenses mc!udeq in the cost), general
anda Cgﬁianistrati‘ve expenses, selling expenses, remuneration expenses, other expenses arising in the ordinary course
nd a
2{ business of the Company.

Share capital

i ies di i t cases of business
i d to third parties directly related to the 1ssue.of new shares, excep

et ot S emcaerse E:éorded in equity as a decrease in the amount received as a result of this issue. Any excess of
Cﬁm?;:'a\‘;:i::‘ of the consideration received over the par value of shares issued is recognized as share premium.

the

Dividends

ends ogni iabili i i ly if they are declared

: d as a liability and deducted from equity at Fhe reporting datq on

gi\?d eor :t:ett:crep?;rzt:ienga;ate. Infor[?nation on dividends is disclosed in the statements if they were recommended
eror

fore the reporting date, and also recommended or declared after the reporting date, but before the date of
e ) :
::por:;val of the financial statements for the issue.
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Related parties

ies include the Sole Sharehglder of the Cg
Related partiesin mpany, key management personn
3 significant portion of the :ﬁ;if;?; shail;es are directly or indirectly owned by lheg:le Shareholder or key ma
pe,sf,nnel of the Company 8anizations controlled by the Government of the Republic of Kazakhst don
of the financial statements to be aple to form an opini i
:::tliles?:“ the Company, information is discloseq on t ekl okioled

he relationshj
is control regardless of whether transactions between th vl

el, and organizations in which

ese related partie
Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are both favourabl
the date the financial statements are authorizeq for

e and adh
L sta issue
and which are not adjusting events disclosed in the

verse events that occur between the reporting date and
N EventsA that occurred after the end of the reporting year
notes to the financial statements, if they are material,
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial

. statements. Data on
notes to the financial statements unless the outflow of r

such liabilities are disclosed in the
esources representing

economic benefits is unlikely,
Contingent assets are not recognized in the fin,

ancial statements, If there
economic benefits associated with such assets,

is a reasonable probability of obtaini
data on these assets are di y =

sclosed in the notes,
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policy can be changed only if the change required by IFRS or leads to the provision of more reliable
and more relevant information about the financial position of the results of operations or cash flows of the Company,

Change in classification
As of 31 December 2019, the financial statement position was revised to present it in current year format,
The impact on the statement of financial positon as of 31 December 2019 is presented as fllows:

31 December 2019

(according to issued Reclassification 3 Decent;l::;mw
report) (restated)
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,043,391 17,972,706 23,016,097
inctity i 17,972,706 (17,972,706) -
Cash in credit institutions
Total 23,016,097 - 23,016,097

The impact on the statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 December 2019, is presented as follows:

ot anlabind For the year ended
A De;iember'2019d Reclassification 31 December 2019
(accort renp!o ::) ssue (restated)

Net cash from operating activities 3,703,383 (100,382) 3,603,001
Bank deposits in credit institutions (812,533,000) 8?7 2;5513,9(3.0 3
Withdrawal of bank deposit 817,158,912 (817,158, ) oty
Purchase of intangible assets (1,201 .802) E (2’,430:518)
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (2'43065;8% : e

Net R:fh frmtl::el:;s\;ircr:i::iae:dal T 998,‘973 (4,625,912) 8,(;::,:32

et ¢ ) i

Net cash from financing uctivmeis — (2’.7:4166:3 TR G785 540

Net change of cash and cash equivalen ,940, ek R

Cash a::' cash equivalents at the year-beginning :.;::.%;‘: 1%125(;"2,2106" vieesT

Cash and cash equivalents at the year-end ,043, )

18
* Amount of short-term deposits as of 31 December 20
** Amount of short-term deposits as of 31 December 2019
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change in estimates

estimates can affect oply the current riod
Chz,;gj‘ tiir:‘ g estimates should be includeg o1 Period or the current ang future
in ac

: in the same classification
speciﬁ ed accounting values were Previously count,
the -

periods, The results of ch; es
taken into ac

items of the profit and |oss account in ;?\%ch
The nature and magnitude of the chang

€5 in the estimates that haye a material effect i i
A \ €ctin the current perjod or wl
o ficant impact .is expected in subsequent Periods shoulg be disclosed. If it is practically impossiglee to quanl:?f;e
ihs fact is to be disclosed. '

4 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND KEY SouRcEs oF UNCERTAINTY IN ESTIMATES

Use of professional judgment, assumptions and estimates

The preparation of financial statements folang IFRS requires the Mmanagement of the Com

judgment, estimates anéj- azl:counung assurrtl?nons. These assumptions and estimates affect
and liabilities, disclosures on contingent assets and liabilities on the da the financial state

;sset:r ed, and the reported amounts of Profit and loss during the reporting period, v sl

stimgtes: The most significant estimates relate to the recognition and
termln‘atmn of the term and rate of leases, policies for a trusteeship
seful lives of Property, plant, angd equipment, intangible assets, and the
On, and estimated tax liabilities,

mptions and estimates of the Company are baseq on the inputs that it had at t
ﬁncial statements. However, current cir, i

results may differ from these e
'Mtu?:ment of financial assets, the de
Imr':ement, development costs, the u
Sitermination of deferred taxes, taxati

Estimates and related assumptions are regularly reviewed. Changes in estimates are reflected in the period in which
the assessment was revised if the change affects only that period or in the period to which the change relates ang
in future periods if the change affects both cyrrent and future periods,

The main assumptions and estimates regarding future developments and key sources of
the end of the reporting period that are associated with t

; f uncertainty in estimates at
t he risk of significant adjustments to the amounts of assets
and liabilities in the next financial year are discussed below:

Recognition and impairment of financial assets

Calculating the allowance for impairment of financial assets, the company applies the expected credit loss model
following the requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Inrespect of trade and other receivables, the Compa_ny has adopted the simplified approach Provided by the standard
and calculated expected credit losses for the entire term, The Company used the provision matrix based on its
experience with credit losses adjusted for forec§st factors specific o borrowers and general economic conditions.
As of 31 December 2020, provisions were recognized for trade receivables for KzT 6,036 thousand (as of December

4). The small amount of the provision is explained by the fact that the main
ies of the Republic of Kazakhstan, financed from the government

Concerning the impairment of cash in current apd deposif. accounts with credit institutions
a general approach, which involves the analysis of credit risks and the ¢ : se i
on the stages in which the financial assets are located . Following the Methodology for calculallng'p_rowslor'\s fol_lowmg
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and based on the calculations made, the Company recognized a provision for impairment
of cash on current accounts with credit institutions on 31 December 2020, for KZT 11,059 thousand (2019: KZT 30,117
thousand) (Note 12).

, the Company has adopted
alculation of impairment losses, depending

In 2019, the Management of the Company revised the assessment reggrding the .recognition/ non-recognition of
provisions for impairment in

a provision for impairment was recognized for KZT 45,923 thousand (2019: KZT 101,294 thousand) (Note 12).
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Nation?

current value of non-current financial assets Measured at amortized cost (bonds)
November 2017, (07 N?‘:onalnacank of the Republic of Kazakhstan, together with the G

n Kazakhstan and _Kazaf ,‘m" B"'Tl"‘_’.ratlon LLp being a third Party, signed a fr.

of financial condition of “R| ank” JSC. Following the Government Decree of

thi7‘ pank deposits in “RBK” Bank” JSC with }

2017, :
n

coupon “Kazakhmys” Corporation” LLp an interest rat
annum. { (the ' oo

0.0;: Ef' KZT 100,119 thousand in 5 years. The guarantee con ditlon) issued a guarantee covering

ran

The maximum liability of the Guarantor does not exceed KZT 100,119 thousand:

el “"def";h: b(‘;";’?’rsam?lebcoan r?e : n that after 5 years from the d

placement 0 , @ ndholders wil| receive from the psFk e date of

122,000,000 thousand;

The size of the Guarantor's maximum lability i
. bond repurchase received by all bondhol

thousand.

for reference: the total amount of DSFK placed bonds is kzT 335,000,000 thousand.

reporting date, the total amount of cash rece|
% oﬁfmlt:?i top:()ZT 16,524 thousand (2019: KZT 5,382 thous
?:::mpainnent for KZT 239,010 thousand was recognized j

) d. Provision
n the financial st San
KIT 255,535 thousand) (Note 18). statements as of the reporting date (2019:
financial statements, non-current assets (bonds) are stated at the di
Lr;i:;e;e discount rate of 11% per annum, scounted value of expected cash flows

future changes regar_ding the terms and amounts gf early redemption of bonds, changes in it rati
a:gncial position of the issuer or the Guarantor, credit institutions in which the Comparr\‘)%'s cast:r;;r;::n;?mg (:;
are placed, may affect the assessment of the carrying amount of financial assets, Management periodically reyiou
available information regarding possible risks associated with the above financial assets, 2
petermining the lease term under contracts with an option to extend or an option to terminate the legse - the
Company as a lessee

ines the lease term as a non-premature termination period of th i i
The Company defines t | remat v °n periad of the lease, together with thy
for which the option to extend the lease is provided if therg is sufficient confidence that ito\gaill be exercis:dp:i::I :::
periods for which the option to terminate the lease is provided if there is sufficient confidence that it will not be
executed.

Company has had land leases for more than one year, several equipment leases, which incluge i
:;hremina tg the leasq- The Company uses judgment Fo assess Whet_her it has sufficient assurance that it x?llosirr:i:
the option to terminate the.lease.. At the same time, it takes into account all relevant factors that lead to the
emergence of an economic incentive to exercise any of the options, Upon lease commencement, the Company
reassesses the lease term in the event of a significant event or change in circumstances that is controlled by the
Company and affects its ability to exercise (or not exercise) the option to terminate the lease (for example, a

significant improvement in the leased property or a significant adaptation of the leased asset to the needs of the
Company).

The Company did not take into account the termination opgion when determining the lease term under equipment
rental agreements for a lease term of up to 4 years. The periods in respect of which an option to terminate the lease
is provided shall be taken into account by the Company when determining the lease term only if there is sufficient
confidence that they will be fulfilled. Leased equipment is necessary to ensure the production capacities of the
Company for the fulfillment of contractual obligations. Currently, there is no way to easily replace these assets
without a significant negative impact on the production process.

Note 20 provides complete information about lea

ses with option termination that were not considered in determining
the lease term.
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i 2is s
(In dete”"i ning the rate of raising additional borrowed funds
e0s€”

b : : :
pany cannot eafsﬂ){i :e-t&r:;nir;eut‘l;e rlar;teeg:s: ;’:t; laid down in a lease. Therefore, it uses the rate of attracti
A C°monat porrowed unwed i nocesiry 15 obt‘ac‘ the Company could attract for the same period and w;:;ung
addif'securi the bt)_nql ¢ economic conditions. Th In an asset with a cost similar to the cost of an asset in the the
e peof e 112 G estimates if there ar Us, the percentage reflects what the Company should h o
H aden&n“inaﬁomlg;z using the Observablaer:o't‘xo Ob:e rt\;able rates. The Company determines the rate g‘f’era;::i‘:g’
rce data - accordi A ‘
%itb"‘:;f Kafakh‘la“ on the date the lease begins. ording to the statistics of the National Bank of the
pu A
iary manqgemeﬂt ﬂgfeemmt of property

eement No. 2/38 of 07 November 2019, the Com

Ag : ; ;:any was transferred to fiducia i
et o v (5 s, et i s nfed elctonic ot marsgnen: e of
P des of the Repu nistry of Digital Development, Innovation and Aerospace Industry

lic of Kazakhstan. The property, which includes the “ESEDO” softwar: i

of th; sﬁe&ﬁl”"d and licensed software with a book value of KZT 2,128 thousanz F»::;‘a)sd :&Y::P:;dbﬁkt;ahée il

105, mber 2019. Within the framework of the concluded fiduciary management agreement th: e
akes tO transfer government bod!:;ctp cloud workflow by changing the platform. Since properéy righfso g\pany
o the COmpany,.Magagemept cided to reflect the assets received under this agreement o ff-bao =

tral'(l;‘“.“.s without reflection in the financial statements, o ence

accou™

sl V€S of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets
imates the remaining useful lives of property plant i
ompany estima r I v operty plan and equipment, depreciable i
T:Nl?eg x :t the end of each fmancral year and, if the expectations differ from previous gsrtimates "t‘ttwgncgr‘\l;lne ea-sssaerts
a counted for 35 changes in accounting estimates following IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Chang'es in Accguntine
ncu tes and EITOrs. These estimates can have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of property, plant, a 3
cquipment, intangible assets, and depreciation recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. ' N

Deve'opment costs

ment costs are gapitalized following the Company’s Accounting Policies. The initial capitalizati i
DeVeéogn management’s )udgmgnt that technqloglcal ar_\d economic feasibility is exposed, as aar[:l:l:;::nt:ef ;:;;;::
e sches a certain stage following the estabhshef] project 1q1plen\entation model. To determine the amounts that
e capitalized, n\anagefpe“t makes assumptions regarding the expected cash flows from the project, discount
tes, and the expected period of receipt of be.neﬂts. As of December 31, 2020, the carrying amount of c’apitalized
costs amounted to KZT 41,603 thousand (2019: KZT 16,103 thousand) (Note 21). This amount includes significant

nts in the development of Investment projects developed for the provision of i i i
e e state budget o the Republc of Kazaknstan. p RISt sl o

jmpairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets

each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is an indication of a possible i
G‘such an indication exists, the Company calculates the recoverable amount of the azoset. Then:pezgv?:;l:faa:xﬁ:i
of an asset is the greater of the following: the fair .value of the asset or cash-generating unit less costs to sell and
value in use of the asset. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset unless the asset generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the inflows generated by other assets or groups of assets. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recovgrable amount, the asset is considered impaired and written off to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, expected cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
e-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assets.

As of 31 December 2020, and 2019, the Company determined that there was no indication of impairment of non-
financial assets.

Deferred tax

The Company following the tax legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan only after the reporting period determines
the obligation to calculate and pay corporate income tax. Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet method
by determining the temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities is
reviewed at each reporting date. Changes in the measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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i liabilities
. and estimated tax
Taxatlm
ement considers as i
imating tax risks, manag > 35 possible areas of non.- ;
et challenge or does not belleve that it can succesiully appu additio
‘ties. Such @ definition requires substantial ;

At
ca nnO

| taxes ar
; judgments and may cha - e assessed by tay
au Lations, determination of expected results from pending tax li)t(igatizﬁe ::‘ Z :ﬁ:ult of changes in tax laws and
resr‘:i od out by tax authorities. ,
cd

REVENUE
5, SALES

petailed information on revenue is presented in the following table;

: 2
ance, administration, system and techmcalservicing, hosting, 020 2019
N uication services to the Minisry of Digital Development, Innovation
mdr:éf ospace Industry of the Republic of Kazakhstan 2,397,669 455800
hnical maintenance of hardware and IS ] el 5’035'296
Tec em and technical services provided to the Ministry of Finance of RK, » U083,
Sy;:easury Committee, National Bank of RK i e
Other 1,372,707 497,674
Total 43,568,665 41,384,961

from the provision of information services, syst d t i i icati
represent revenue v f » System, and technical services communication
53::&‘:? etc. Services are rendered in the territory of the Republic of Kazakhstan, contracts wit'h customers are
Z:,ncluded in Kazakhstan currency. Core customers are the state authorities of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Revenue recognition terms

2020 2019
Revenue s recognised over a period of time 43,568,665 41,384,961
Total revenue from contracts with customers 43,568,665 41,384,961
Contract balances
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
220,800 179,189
14 , ’
Trade receivables (Note 14) 14,614 13,177
Contract liabilities

: i de receivables, as their maturity is generally 30 calendar d_ays after the approval_ of the
w0 mtere;t b ;cz:;:xse dA(s”:): r3a1 December 2020, a valuation allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables
rdﬁaeréf)g:iczzd for kZT 6,036 thousand (31 December 2019, for KZT 3,423 thousand) (Note 14).

wa t]

tual liabilities represent short-term liabilities under contracts where the Company fulfills its contractual
ggg;raations and transfers services to the customer after the reporting date.

i i i ing the disclosure of the remaining performance obligations as
ilizes a practical expedient concerning
Ttt?:g:;n:::)fysu;:iginal e?(pected contractual terms with customers do not exceed one year.
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ot et
(In

6.

t
fieq Contat

of 2 lsceﬂms’-:d vacations, bonuses, and related taxes expenses
u

Lez
iion for unt=
yainenance s
ilities
’ grave‘ e
terials
M:Jrance costs
aining
sult [:y and inform

penses

ation services
other ex|

Total

ENSES
NISTRATIVE EXP!
7. - MOME

gy et o

2
Rent alPe'“Sre: (No!el vacations, bonuses, and related taxes expenses
provision 0

costs
mnr:z‘?;‘;;‘”:n 4 amortisation (Notes 19, 21)
Dep
Materials
mvel expenses .
sudit and advisory services
staff training
gocial, cultura
Other expenses

|, and sport events costs

Total

29

2020 2019
17,244,288 19,536,562
6,828,095 6,932,784
2,275,994 1,941,545
1,492,284 199,297
944,527 1,079,903
815,126 207,408
617,847 515,123
589,400 554,010
370,413 224,165
225,131 222,879
146,807 211,488
116,800 170,869
116,645 231,975
94,563 83,455
10,490 9,753
1,672,472 1,426,845
33,560,882 33,548,081

2020 2019
912,593 874,202
103,802 104,664
115,257 39,930
30,238 30,363
26,861 25,077
15,490 17,405
6,913 23,983
6,050 9,000
5,878 6,635
3,343 57,502
70,419 134,516
1,296,844 1,323,277
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FOR sa
5 THER INCOME AND EXPENSES
0

f C
versal O " vies
“ﬁ‘nﬁ 5 pe“‘;‘lsm for CIT penalty for the past periods (Note 24)
Re\ﬂ"a‘ of pro sal of provision of impairment (Note 18)
pome 107 sets disposal.
ncome :rom the reversal of impairment loss
income

o(her

Tota!
sions establishment
Expenses :o;:’:":‘paimm of financial instruments
s

ppense ots disposals
pxpenses :r;mn ,«a;spaim\ent of non-financial assets (Note 15)
s fr

jmpairment of receivables

ot hment of provision and writing off bad debt

es for the establis
other expenses

Total
FINANCE INCOME

crued rate of return on deposits (Note 13)

ncome On & bonds (Note 13)
turn on bon
Accrued ;?;g?!:‘rsn financial assets accounted for under depreciable assets
rse

(Note 18)
Total

(0. FINANCE COSTS

Long-term lease interest fee (Note 20)

Total
’ INCOME TAX EXPENSES

{ 11.

Current tax expenses for the reporting period
Deferred tax (recovery)/expenses
Total

The amount of taxes levi ,
Company is incorporated i

30

2020 2019
131,411 5
104,892 42,467

47,068 .
8,054 7,458
792 19,696
6,317 :

10,271 14,181

315,935 83,802
(26,702) (131,311)
(56,982) (126,494)
(12,633) (11,414)
(6,305) {10,775)
(4,454) .

- (2,920

(6,239) (20,759)
(113,315) (303,673)

2020 2019

968,586 959,877
34 35
16,524 7,255
985,144 967,167

2020 2019
589,981 86,365
589,981 86,365

2020 2019

2,311,426 1,672,656
(362,191) 184,590
1,949,235 1,857,246

ed is calculated following the applicable tax rates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. Since the
n the Republic of Kazakhstan the income tax rate was 20% in 2020 (2019: 20%).
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(In

I’ corporate income tax expense applicable to income before income tax is as follows:
iation
‘I,auo
nc 2020 2019
- 9,294,686 7,139,736
e 20% 20%
tbefo e % — asagy ————— %
pol® e o o applicable rate —— L9y hTar
a
o (271,893) 429,299
non* ucnbled“?:mes estimates 362,191 2
ozhi';e in temporary
(o
—— the year 1,949,235 1,857,246

aX ex

L ome tax asset 2020 Change 2019 Change 2018

inc ees-
D,ferf‘:d R bilites for employ 157,760 9,666 148,094 (3.246) 151,340
Bt provisons t of ’

mx;o * for impairmen 1,207 522 685 499 186
Pro eivables f

'ec-e;;: for impairment 0 3,979 (1,124) 5,103 1,794 3,309

N eories bilities 3,340 2,998 2,392 2,34 .
jnven imated liabi ?

i N sion for est! 90,586 83,034 7,552 7,552 .
:‘: 2 e 2,881 (1,289) 4,170 (10,312) 14,482
Taxes 800 de::‘i;mme UIIRE (261,753) (93,807) 167,946 (1,371) 169,317

otal defer” es
T ferred X "a:::‘eqmpmem (543,281) 268,384 (817,665 (183,219) (628,446)
propertys plant, abilities (543,281) 268,384 (811,665) (183,219) (628,446)

| deferred tax {127 (281,528) 362,191 (643,719) (184,590 (459,129)
Tot2 sferred tax liabilities
Net d ,
t in deferred income tax is as follows:
emen
Moy 2020 2019
643,719 459,129
ary . (362,191) 184,590
psof 1Jant ent of profit or loss . L
Recognised in the statem 281,528 643,719
s of 31 December
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
12.
31 December L D;é:;nber
2020 (restated)
14,800,000 18,074,000
79 5,017,645
Bank deposits Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan JSC, KZT 1,861,3 017,
Cash held with current accroct:::;“;gree\:knents (reverse repo’) with an initial term
purchase and ::‘r'eeers:torﬁgtr‘s - without a credit rating A0 55 85é
f less than f Kazakhstan JSC, USD : i
c:sh held with cu;rent :ec;z;r::s in Halyk Bank o . 5
held with savings it JSC, KZT -
8;“1 held with current accounts in Bank CenterCred 56,982) (31,411)
impairment loss allowance 22,604,397 23,016,097

f these banks according to Standard & Poor's international rating agency is disclosed in Note 29.
The rating 0 A oo

)l
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FOR ausdﬂdso i
(n 8 redit institutions are denominated in KZT and are placed for varyin

1s doe frOT gash requirements of the Company. Interest is accrued on such de
un

g pgn’ods of up to 3 months,
POsits at rates ranging from

AmoUe o on t 2019: at rates from 7.75% to 10% per annum). Financial income represents interest on bank
dependo per AU (1 esents bank deposits a5 of 31 Decembey 2020, and 2019,
7.00% to The table
L.
dep®! Placement terms Interest rate 31 December 31 December
2020 2019
3 months 9% =
redit J5C 1 month 8,25% 3,400,000 5'187'0“?
nkC‘"wEr adit JSC Up to 1 month 8% 2,300,000
5 nkc““i 5C Up to 1 month 8,25% 3,400,000 .
e Bant e 3 months 10% - 5,000,000
roﬂesu;kJSC i J5E Up to 1 month 7,50 5,700,000 4,187,000
ATF Bm,nk of Kazakhs' Up to 1 month 8,25% 3,700,000
Hél)':a Bank 15C 14,800,000 18,074,000
fort
Tota!
mpany's management revi‘sed.its estimgte in respect of recognition/non-recognition of impairment
2019, the Co hpdeposited with credit institutions since the Company immediately opens a new deposit for the
:;o Jision fo;tgarsthe deposit is closed, the credit risk in respect of cash deposited with credit institutions persists.
term @
e in impairment loss allowance as at 31 December were as follows:
ents 1
coui 2020 2019
131,411 4,916
1 January 56,982 131,411
ccrued (131,411) (4,916)
reversed . 56,982 131,411
r
31 Decem
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
13.

od and paid interest on deposits for 2020 and 2019 by bank and interest on bonds are as follows;
Accrued an

As of 210-;%"”"7 Accrued (Note 9)  Repaid  Bank fee CIT withheld

As of
31 December

2020
15C 22,037 228,844 (211,290) = (37,286) 2,305
Bankmtirsccm“ 5,123 217,370 (189,888) - (32,605) 2
Bank
ﬁIlek gank of Kazakhstan 5 225,571 (191,735 - (33,836) :
e 837 264,112 (219,295) (31) (38,706) 6,917
ForteBank JSC ; 22,259 (18,920) . (3.339) -
gurasian Bank e . 9,918 - - 9,918
Repo secy tie! . 511 511
nBankJSC
pFSK Specialised Financial . 3% (30) > (5) :
Company LLP 27,997 968,620 (831,158) G1) (145,777) 19,651
Total
Fee As of
Accrued
1 Januai Repaid Cr CIT withheld 31 December
AsgliL oy (Note 9) withheld 2019
19,890 287,383 (245,433) : (39,803) 2,037
sankCen;eJrchfed“ Jsc 7 138,175 (112,398) ; (20,726) 5123
ATF Ban
Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan 5,187 04981 (178,643) - (31,525) .
55C 1106 190,565 (162,169) (40) (28,625) 837
Fone?m: ;:‘f & : 138,773 (117,957) : (20,816) .
Eurasfan
DSFK Spechng"a"“a' : % (30) : (5) -
COTpanv 26.255 959,912 (816,630) (40) (141,500) 27,997
Total k
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14, TRADE RECEIVABLES

31 December 31D
2020 ;;:;n o
ivables
T e i 226,83
LTy Ty AT (6,036) ‘82:19;]3)
= 2OM0. T e
-term trade and other receivables are presented in
EZcogvables is as follows: Kazakhstan tenge. The 28Ing analysis of unimpaired trade
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
1 to 30 days 207,444 173,474
31 to 60 days . 4
61 to 90 days ) :
91 to 120 days 9,807 5
121-180 days ; 28
181 days and over i Sk
\
Toul 226,836 182,983
The Company applies the expected credit loss approach prescribed in IFRS 9, which is based on an estimate of
expected credit losses, whereby a provision is calculated based on expected lifetime credit losses for all trade
receivables.

To estimate expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on overall credit risk characteristics
and days overdue. Levels of expected credit losses are based on dye dates thy
respectively, and similar historical cred1§ losses incurred during that period,
for current and projected macroeconomic information as

Historical loss levels are not adjustea
there is no material i
credit losses on trade receivables is determined following
follows:

2020 2019
3,43 929

1 January )
Accrued 4,454 2,651
Written off 1,717y .
Reversed (124) (157)
31 December 6,036 3,423
The analysis of trade receivables by the counterparty is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
NC JSC State Corporation ‘Government for Citizens’ 124,531 26,862
Banknote Factory of the National Bank of RK 6,864 5,760
National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan RSE 31,'2:; i’g:
Traqsteletfgl JSC Branch in Nur-Sultan ,902 3,.468
Maximus
National Atomic Company Kazatomprom JSC t:i; " z‘;(;
NIH Zerde JSC o 5 i
ublican Notary Chamber Private Institution i .

?rffzmation Technology Center of the Department of Digital Technologies of ‘ Ghgn

Almaty Oblast SI 88283 i
i 226,836 182,983
Total
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(5. INVENTORIES

Raw and materials
spare parts

el
:::vemories received for free

promotional materials

Other materials

Loss allowance from impairment of inventories
Total

Movement of allowance for impairment of inventories is as follows:

1 January
Accrued (Note 8)
Written off

31 December

16. VAT RECOVERABLE

Value-added tax recoverable
VAT for a non-resident

VAT payable for a non-resident
Total

17.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses

Expenses of claims
Receivables from employees
Total

18.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

Bonds receivable
Net of impairment
Net of discount

Total

34

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
133,170 119,764
27,704 36,159
9,468 24,453
7,261 7,261
6,866 15,320
46,050 34,461
(19,895) (25,514)
T o —— 5,514
210,624 211,904
2020 2019
25,514 16,544
6,305 10,775
(11,924 (1,805)
—_— %74
19,895 25,514
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
1,322,052 556,083
12 12
2,822 2,884
1,324,886 558,979
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
533,874 553,949
23,556 -
3,256 5,106
560,686 559,055
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
339,130 355,654
(239,010) (255,535)
(18,860) (26,913)
81,260 73,206




N ational Information Technologies Jsc

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTﬁ.SH TEOYEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

:’o.:housands of Kazakhstan tenge)
n

017, the National Bank of the Repyp|j .
in vea;?hzg: and “Kazakhmys” Corporations ELP t::e of Kazalghstan, together with the Government of the Republic
She financial condition ngB:(F}Pg" ignk" JSC. Following the G
2017, bank depos{j;);:K S eciala:inaﬁ(i:ar'gh " Were converted into 15-year
coupon bonds of “Kaz kﬁm s¥ Cormaeati ompany LLP (DSFK)” at a par value of 1 tenge with an interest rate of
0.01% per annum. 9 :o ayd ; 5rpora on” LLP (the ‘Guarantor’) issued a 8uarantee covering the amount in the
range of KZT 100,119 thousand in 5 years. The guarantee condition:

S are as follows:
+  The maximum liability of the Guarantor does not exceed KZT 100,119 thousand;
A claim under the Guarantee can be made only on the condition that after 5 f
. : the date of
lacement of the bonds, all bondholders will receive fr e o
'1:‘22,000,000 Wousand: om the DSFK a total amount of at least KZT

. The size of the Guarantor's maximum liadbility is reduced (on a Proportional basis) by the amount of the

bond re%urchase received by all bondholders more than the amount of the repurchase for KZT 72,000,000
thousand. "

For reference: the total amount of DSFK placed bonds is KzT 335,000,000 thousand.

|n these financial statements, non-current assets

{bonds) are stated at the present value of expected cash flows
using a discount rate of 11% per annum. S

Any future changes regarding the terms and amounts of early redemption of bonds, changes in the credit rating or
financial position of the issuer or the Guarantor, cnjedit institutions in which the Company's cash and bank deposits
are placed, may affect the assessment of .the carrying amount of financial assets, Management periodically reviews
available information regarding possible risks associated with the above financial assets.

As of the reporting date, the total amount of cash received from DSFK as a result of the repurchase of bonds
amounted to KZT 16,524 thousand (2019: KZT 5,382 thousand) of the outstanding KZT 364, 189 thousand. Provision
for impairment for KZT 239,010 thousand was recognized in the financial statements as of the reporting date (2019:
KZT 255,535 thousand).

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Bonds receivable (par value) as of the year-beginning 355,654 31,036
s e ey (16,524) (5,382)
Bonds receivable (par value) as of the year-end 339,130 355 654
Changes in fair value of bonds are as follows:
2020 2019

As of 1 January 73,206 63,675

Repurchase (repayment) (16,524) (5,382)

Repurchase discount (Note 9) 16,524 7255

Income from loss reversal (Note 8) 8,054 7458

Bonds receivable (par value) as of the year-end 81,260 73,206
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(i thousan®® of
pROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Other
property, Construction
Land Buildings and  Machinery and plan;:, and in progress Total
structures equipment Vehicles equipment
ost 2019 24,970 879,308 13,095,184 255,085 695,774 259,811
awary ) y B 15,210,132
¢ o{e;;s Ja - 3,418 994,643 - 334,230 1,363 1,333,654
oc!
ransferred O ess - 2,151 30,615
|c qruction in progr ' ) 32,766
ed from non-
mr:::assets held for y .
ar - 4,850 - 4,850
) e ehd - 4,460 68,848 1,647 338,653 - 413,608
cap - - - (2,863) - (44)  (174,837) (177,744)
mspt;’” pecember 2019 24,970 887,186 14,157,963 261,582 1,399,228 86,337 16,817,266
As oeedi - - 2,250,400 - 626,671 624,814 3,501,885
PT:mal  cansfer - 9,547 9,989 - 468,961  (488,497) -
In o - - (88,602) (6,097) (5,703) _ (104,167) (204,569)
T:of +1 December 2020 24,970 896,733 16,329,750 255,485 2,489,157 118,487 20,114,582
ulated deprecation
of 01 January 2019 = (111,955) (4,603,935)  (198,539) (136,846) - (5,051,275)
4 for the year (24,038) (1,550,642) (27,113) (83,065) (1,684,858)
el of depreciation - - 143,906 94,669 8,221 246,796
Diposal - - 91 - 10 921
4o of 31 pecember 2019 - (135,993) (6,009,760)  (130,983) (211,680) = (6,488,416)
A“rued for the year e (24,567) (1,492,708) (37,059) (160,948) (1,715,282)
e A 80,441 4,438 3,155 88,034
As of 31 pecember 2020 - (160,560) (7,422,027)  (163,604) (369,473) - (8,115,664)
Net carrying amount as
of:
31 pecember 2019 24,970 736,173 8,907,723 91,881 2,119,684 118,487 11,998,918
31 pecember 2020 24,970 751,193 8,148,203 130,599 1,187,548 86,337 10,328,850
Amortisation expenses are included in the following costs:
2020 r. 2019r.
Cost of goods sold (Note 6) 1,690,415 1,658,369
Administrative expenses (Note 7) 24,867 24,968
peversal of depreciation from DAPP = 1,521
Total 1,715,282 1,684,858

the sources of financing of property, plant, and equipment are own funds, there are no

As of the reporting date,
| for securing liabilities to third parties.

assets pledged as collatera

In 2019, the Company revised valuation concerning fully depreciated property, plant, and equipment, which resulted
in reversal of accumulated depreciation of property, plant, and equipment equal to KZT 246,796 thousand including
machinery and equipment equal to KZT 143,906 thousand, vehicles equal to KZT 94,669 thousand and other property,
plant and equipment equal to KZT 8,221 thousand. The company engaged “Appraisal and Expertise” LLP, state
license No. SPPO 116-0DI dated 13 July 2018, for plant, property, and equipment valuation (Appraisal Report No.

05/11-01 dated 18 November 2019, “Appraisal and Expertise” LLP).

As at 31 December 2020 the amount of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment amounted to KIT 73,418
thousand (31 December 2019: KZT 102,017 thousand).
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20, LEASES

t-of-Use assets

Righ

any has leases of premises, land, and equipment used in o
e Ca:’l;"?u n for one year, the leases of land range from one to five ye
ic r years. The Company’s liabilities under lease 5
g’e;zurall% the Company is not permitted to sublease

to terminate the leases.

perating activities, The leases of premises
ars, and the leases of equipment run for up

greements are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets.

of less than 12 months and leases of low-value land, the Company applies th iti
Ft:;vlizzs:smr short-term leases and low-value assets, SH2XY e receiiion g
P!

The carrying value of the right-of-use assets recognized and its changes during the period are as follows:

Equipment

Lind Right-of-use Total right-of-
iy use assets
Historical cost
As of 1 January 2019 (restated) A3 , 483
BN - 3,384,516 3,384,516
a1 teceberaod 433 3,384,516 3,384,949
Disposal L : o
o edads - 3,075,259 3,075,259
o Dt 2020 44 6,459,775 6,459,819
Accumulated deprecation
As of 01 January 2019 . - S
Accrued depreciation (208) (199,089) pa)
As of 31 December 2019 (208) 193,089 1199,257)
Accumulated depreciation (191) (1,492,093) W
Ay 389 : 389
e 31 Daconsir 5030 (10) (1,691,182) (1,691,192)
Book value
o of 31 Duceiibef 2070 34 4,768,593 4,768,627
s Daiieber s 225 3,185,427 3,185,652
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(In thovs
Lease liabilities
Sl 8 the carrying value of lease liabilities and their changes during the reporting period:
Land Equipment Total

x5 of 1. January 2019 (restated) (498) - (498)
surplus 3 (3,384,516) (3,384,516)
s Gired (60) (86,305) (86,365)
nid 307 247,660 247,967
s of 31 December 2019 (251) (3,223,161) (3,223,412)
including:
Current labilites (205) (688,428) (688,633)
Non-current liabilities (46) (2,534,733) (2,534,779)

(251) (3,223,161) (3,223,412)
surplis . (3,075,259) (3,075,259)
nterest inc urred (25) -(589,956) (589,981)
sl 233 1,666,864 1,667,097
s of 31 December 2020 (43) (5,221,512) (5,221,555)
including:
Current labilities - (1,717,953) (1,717,953)
Non-current liabilties (43 (3,503,559) (3,503,602)

(43) (5,221,512) (5,221,555)

Amounts recognised within profit or loss are presented below:

2020 2019
Lease expenses relating to short-term leases are included in the Cost of services
gt 44,521 1,079,903
Le(ase expenses relating to short-term leases included in Administrative expenses
(Note 7) k 103,802 i
Right-of -use assets amortisaglor} expenses (Note 6) 1,492,284 950
Interest income from lease liabilities (Note 10) 539,981 i
3,130,594 1,470,229

Total

The Company has several equipment leases with lease termination options. Management includes such options in the
leases to have flexibility in managing the leased assets portfolio and to ensure that they meet the Company's needs.
Management exercises significant judgment in determining whether there is a reasonable assurance that these lease

termination options will (or will not) be exercised (Note 2).
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E akhstan tenge)
FOR T Jsands of K22
int 3
ASSET:
INTANGIBLE
21 Capitalized
development Software
t 48,052
mszorlﬁa';g’m 2019 202 1337
psof © 14,340 1,588,630
s (46,289) .
pro
ol RS v e A L
i pecember 2019 16105 gy
3
pet 23,806
proceect 4 from 25,500 74,520
ferret ress * )
T struction i P08 - (253,837)
it
e —————wwd \
o A S 7 B %73y
o ated amortisztion — (eBeese
Accuf"c‘, § January 2019 — (686,656)
As O }
o amortsation (182,852)
e e e e
(31December2019 - 869,508
As o .
crued amortisation - (47%?3',7323
S;pwal
¢ 31 December 2020 - (1,036,419)
As O
K value 5 41,603 1,530,374
s of 31 D‘-’“::';; L 16,103 1,852,796
As of 31

included in the following costs:
ication expenses are inc
Amortisation

6)
f goods sold (Note
gzzﬁi?\is%rative expenses (Note 7)

Total

22. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables to the th.i rd parties
payables to related parties

Analysis of trade payables by aging is as follows:

Less than 30 days
31 to 180 days
181-360 days

Licens
= Total
1,07.
8,825 2,260,551
85,
841. 1,688,811
(46,289)
\
\
—— 1,164,666 —— 3,903,073
7,420 171,226
2 100,02
(114,201 (m‘og 3‘;
\
— LMY T
T80
\
192,432 m
(100,433) (283,285)
ot SN =B N
292,865 — (Lieamy
(166,825) 587 572
114,201 ]
K
—B689) s
\
852,396 2,424,373
— 871,801 2,740,700
— IV
2020 2019
585,579 283,176
1,994 109
587,573 283,285
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
11,035,627 11,940,251
1,893 151,605
11,037,520 12,091,856
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
10,207,040 11,680,582
830,347 4,667
133 406,607
11,037,520 12,091,856

b 2020 and 2019, accounts payable are non-interest bear ng ar d epayable within 30 to 360 days-
ASO| 3 December ’ J

Related party transactions are disclosed in Note 27.

P iquidi iscl Sed in Note 29.
ription Of the pr()(:ess Yy Yy ag! qumdlty sks is disc

ipti es used b the COmpan to man 0! 9
Desc | e ri N
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i
thousal
(n

liers for goods and services by Currency:
supp

to
bles
e 31 Decemper
3 Detember
2020 2019
"
.033.;2: 12,091,53¢
Kz; ) 320
RU " A —— \
11,037,559 %
f trade payables by the counterparty is 35 follows:
is 0
nalyss
e 31 December 3 Decempe,
2020 2019
SC Corporate Business Division (Corporate Sajes Division of
Al ) i 5,028,822 5,687,419
arcecn 1,403,693 1,476,604
N e 3 804,885 .
hnoPartners u o
feors \ 310,268
N:( it e 308,437 3
:(q.ceu .4 241,920 241,920
LB 190,205 285,792
AL 154,893 645,320
Kar-Te! Com JSC Sulan JSC e 387‘10‘
b -Sulan : :
KaZT': of Transtelecom in Nur: 125,069 ;
Bfan:lecom LLP e o
M::LOUD e 115,132 3
:T {econtact Almaty LLP e A
e
Tl o — 109185
\
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
23. 31 Decembel’ 31 Decembef
2020 219
16,024 8,016
788,798 740,472
salaries unpaid used vacations, bonuses and related taxes
; n
Provision for u

804,822 \mm

i h as salaries, paid annual |
i -term employee benefits suc r
Empliyae benefi isgiig:e:nhgr;uarantees stipulated byl the l?b;;r::glslation of the Re
i 4 x i by internal regulations.
R ayments provided for by
i and other paym
provisions,

eave and leave benefits, paid
public of Kazakhstan bonuses,

nted as follows:
isions for unused vacations, bonuses, and related taxes are presented

in provisio

Movements in pi

ber 31 December
B D;(;;(')n 2019
740,472 756,698
350,970 315,272
e (302,644) (331,498)
Accrued
it 788,798 740,472
31 December
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PROVISIONS

ims liabilities
Leg? i:::‘ces tiabilities
nalties due (Crn
other liabilities

i visions is as 'Ollows:
meﬂt n prO 15
We

1 January
accrued (Note 8)

paid al of provision for CIT penalty for the past periods (Note 8)
Revers:

peclassified to payables

25. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

pension deductions
Individual income tax
Social insurance

Social tax L
Other current liabilities

26. EQUITY

Equity as of 31 December 2020, is represented by 9,998,294 of

9,998,294) and amounts to KZT 13,497,723 thousand.

Equity at the beginning of the reporting year (KZT thousand)
Equity increase (KZT thousand)
Equity as of the end of the reporting year (KZT thousand)

0n 25 April 2019, the Board of “National Infocommunication Holding “Zerde”

i D;;;g. ¥ 31 December
2019
26,702 s
: 9,000
' 138,
5,051 42‘_’
\
\
—31733 150,129
\
31 December 31D
scober
150,129 :
26,703 .
(91,353) y
(47,068) )
(6,658) o
o ) e
—_— 3752 150,129
\
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
104,997 S
93,935 s
37,935 27,33
837 11,059
7,401 93,113
245,155 307,940

outstanding ordinary shares (31 December 2019:

2020 2019

13,497,723 13,486,791
- 10,932

13,497,723 13,497,723

the Company’s authorized shares (9,987,362 ordinary shares) by 10,932 ordinary shares.
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R ds of
ysan

AL .
(in th he book value per share is as follows:
. of the
(ation
calcy 31 December 31 De
e
44,2
: (7105 otz 15
A s (2,2473) (17.367,065)
u::nsible assets.'efer!-.‘nce shares) £ 2.740,700)
n
ot caplt® BY e ordinary shares (KET thousand) 24,177,514 2,914,985
Total et tstanding shares (pieces) —— 299,204 9'998,294
om"® - per ordinary share (KZT) B T
ook by dividing net i e o
re are calculated by dividing net Income/(loss) for the year by the weigh
L ings per sha 3 €ighted average nym
Bassltf ?::n ou%standlng during the year itk
of sha
2020 2019
it after tax : o= k5
profit & Lt number of shares outstanding (pieces) 9,998,294 9,992,828
ighted @ N
WellS earning per share/KZT %n 0,53
gasic

rivative financial instruments at the enq of the reporting year that could require th
re were ms‘tj\:r es. There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares betw:gn the ri;f:rﬂﬁanga?
recy@ “d‘;":;y;hese financial statements were authorized for issue. e
and the d2

ded 31 December, retained earnings are as follows:
r the years en

Fol
31 December 31 December
e P 2020 2019
E gt 10,157,962 7,228,639
. 246,731
ent* ;

Adlu"t':d et b 10,157,962 7,475,370
:‘dj::cial result for the reporting period

n

7,345,451 5,282,592
4,399,249
Dividends payment { ’

2,600,000
galance as of 31 December 13,104,164

10,157,962
—_— 0070
d, including KZT 246,796 th

ousand related to
property, plant, and equipment (Note 19) and

modified approach,

ed earnings of prior years amountad to KZT 246,731 thousan,
* Adjustment ? ’ ::?o‘:sly used accounting estimates about depreciation charge on
the g"“;::‘; ,ﬂ,amed earnings balance of KZT 65 thousand on the transition to IFRS 16 Leases by retrospective
adjustm
pividends

i e decisions of the Sole Shareholder, the Company declared for payment and fully paid dividends
l{n r2 2(2)(1,':) fi‘r)xut?\v:rt‘gtgl\ amount of KZT 4,399,249 thousand (2019: KZT 2,600,000 thousand).
()

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions

i i i i be related if one

financial statements, parties are considered }o ‘ .
Fo;rtct;s&c:iigniﬂcant influence over the other party in making financial or operat
exmmon control with the Company are also considered to be _relatgd. In co
ﬁ:lationshlp, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship,

party can control the other party or
fonal decisions. Parties that are under
nsidering each possible related party
and not merely the legal form.

! ities in which a

include the Company's Sole Shareholder, key. management personnel, and entities in w
Reg:::tigf:\ite:u;:tc in the voting power is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Sole Shareholder or key management
;s:arsonnel of the Company and entities controlled by the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan. Related party

transactions represent transfers of resources, services, or commitments between related parties, regardless of the
charges.
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ationa! "
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:hird parties

Transa

sole shafen"‘j"elg‘z;nmm control of the
u

der:
o ation Development
; uN:cl;(O:‘(allaLInr‘::;vanons" Joint Stock
Age

co";ﬁa::tixfa and authorities

trolled by the Government of the
con
RK

hareholder
:z:t?es under common control of the
sole Shareholder:

dio JSC _
C Kaz:ﬂnetriaties and authorities
g;:temlled by the Government of the

RK
Total

Management remunera tion

As of 31 December 2020, and 2019, the company manai

respectively.

The remuneration received by the key management personnel is included in administrative expenses and comprised

the following:

Salary
Bonuses
Medical insurance

28.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Legal proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, the .Corr}pany is sub
management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, _ n
material effect on these financial statements or the financial position of the Company and t
operations for the foreseeable future except for provision for legal claims for KZT 26,702 thousand

thousand) (Note 24).

ili iabiliti isi i d claims and makes provision in
The Company assesses the probability of liabilities arising from lggal prpceedmgs and
the finanl::ialystatements only where it is probable that events giving rise to the liability will occur and the amount

formation Technologies Js¢
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4s of Kazakhstan tenge)

i de on terms
transactions were ma agreed to betyee
pa t for certain regulated seryj N the partjes
Remedet rates, excep 8ulated services, whicp, 3re Provideq b tha

ctions with related parties of the Company s of 34 December 202 e,
€ as follows.

Sales to related

Purchases f,
parties related par;::
2020
144
1,693,298 380,859
Sales to related Purchases from
parties related partjes
2019
35,723
1,014
1,586,960 775,530

of the liability can be reasonably estimated.

43

ject to legal actions and complaints,
arising from such actions or complaints

U may noy

- NeCagsy
on tariffs offereq rtl‘l’y c:;resnond
n

Receivabjes f
T,
relateq partiesm Payables 10 relatay
Parties
144
39,889
1,893
Receivables frq
related pamesm Payabl::r:e:elated
31,955
491

1,622,683 776,544 32, :;: 151,414

151,905

gement includes four ang six key management personnel
t)

2020 2019

108,092 108,238
26,527 12,048

744

The Company's
will not have a
he results of its
(2019: KZT 2,709
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FOR, pusands
tho
n

anagement believes that
's M.

Possible future
ial @
teria

claims, both jng .
s financial POsition o results 1 ang

ividua
of OPerationg 9 aggregate, Will not

haVe

islation is amended and updated NCY. Mana S

- leg;s‘}a‘g"the transactions and activity of the Company may p challeng:dmﬁly‘t: mrtee{rprezauon of such

s li rally up to 50% of Tt:e ctalxes ad‘dl?onallylassesed and interacr ; : ‘";53":' ities,
slat’s are gene ational Bank. The Company's pancial periogs rema, o 43 times the

leg! :ﬂ; rate of tfh3e1Noecembe" 2020 management believes' that s Nterpretation oefv::: ggxn[ 1 a:ﬂhon'ties

refina“e years. :ih"at it is probable that the Company's tay Positions will pe SUstaineq. “Bislation i
fivi n

for | oriate @

approp

with sufficient freque

ee penefit obligations
oy
EmP

ion arrangemen
does not have any pen519 '
comPam:Nhicl: :equires current withholding
e
tan,
zakhs

'S separate from ¢
tions are expensed
such deduc

ments.

he State Pensign t x
s by the employer Calculateq as rcesr‘:tsagg\ f?;r:\hiukepuwc .
in the period in which they are incurre, Tent gross
. onmental issues 4 d regulations o ¢
Envir ; various environmenta aWs and regula 10N of the Republic of Kazakhs\an. Mana:
Company i; S‘é?;;;:; complies with all such laws and regulations; however, POssibility of e existgenT: 2}
Tl t the ignored.
pelieves S0 Dities cannot be ig
conting! Ceoss tHatithe compaﬂY§ interpretatlpn
nagement beg:ropn'ate and thaldimsls‘ble future circ
tan is a and, accordingly,
Kala‘fhs f the Company
sition 0

ﬁnancial statements.

of the Current enyiro,
umst;
N0 provision for en

Nmental legislation i
ances will not ha

i n the Republic of

Ve a materia| effect on the financial

vironmental claims or Penalties hag been maga inthese
FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

29.

i i i lanning and is a set of mey i
icy i integral part of stratesic business pla '8 anc
isk management PO“C;‘S aT?,e c°$r1paﬂy is mair)ly €xposed to credit, liquidit
gl‘fl:evels of ma::%‘:;“ The financial risks associated with t|
: | instru g
financia

sures implementeq at
Y, and currency risks arising from a|(
he Company’s operations are
lysis of risk exposures by degree and magnitude of rigks.
the ana
through

controlled ang Managed

Credit risk

i L
believes that the total
‘s management A The
The Company s nised at the reporting c:aatses A
provisions rt:tioégquivalent:s and financial :
cash and ca

amount of credit rigk is qual to the sym of current assets less
maximum exposure to credit risk is

equal to the carrying amount of
2020 and 2019, the above items are presented as follows

December

As of 31

31 December 31 Deceniser
2020 2019
22,604,397 23,016,097
nd cash equivalents (Note 12) &
Cas: areceivzible-s (Note 14)
Trade
Total

179,560
— 9560
22,825,197

23,195,657
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(In tl i
g nks in which the Company holds cash i A
" e second tier ba according to the international rating agency Standard
5
B s{ollows- et
Cash balance on
setdementd Rating agency Cash balance on
accounts an S&P settlement ac Rati
deposits and depos‘i::sunu nsga?enq
2020
1,863,051 B85-/Stabl 2019
JsC e 9,2
Halyk Ba:": P 5,700,000 BBB-/Stable 60'502_ BB+/Positive
Halyk B it JsC 3,400,000 B2/Stable :
 centerCr 5,998,328 9,187,008
R 5C 1998, B1/Stable _ 8/Negative
forte B;nk 15 2,300,000 B1/Stable 2
ot s G '
A 4400, B1/Stable e B-/Stabl
K JSC £
Forte Ba7 4700,000 B+/Stable
22,661,379
iy 23,147,507
* Source: Ofﬁcial websites of the banks as of 31 December of the relevant year.
Market risk
gy i t movements in market prices, such i
et risk is the risk tha nr prices, such as foreign exchal i
al;kk et prices will affect the Company’s income. Market risk is dependent o: gtieral:rs‘.e:nlte;es . Fates, and ather
financial system and government policy. The Company manages market risk through botiodc alth of 8 countrys
losses that ~ould arise from adverse changes in market conditions. The Company does estimation of potential
et hedging instruments. not have any derivative or
Liquidity risk
e Company’s managerpent oversees quuid_ity risk by continuously monitori
:rll‘d matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitie:,. oring the forecast and actual cash flows
Liquidity risk tables
The following tables detail the Company's contractual maturity for i R A L
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows ci/f finan]ctlzl Ti(;rl‘)'??wagwe franciel Jabiledes,
hich the Company can be required to pay. puties based on i eartiext cate
2020 Note Up to one year One to ;
fi Over five ye;
Financial liabilities el s L
Trade payables 2 11,037,520 -
Lease Liabilities 20 1,717,953 3,503,602 VA
Total 12,755,473 3,503 = 5,221,555
1602 - 16,259,075
2019 Note Up to one year One to
fi Over five years
Financial liabilities s T
Trade payal?lgs 2 12,091,856 - )
I;:: liabilities 20 991,663 2,974,295 i 1::2:;.::;»
13,083,5 et
19 2,974,295 - 16,057,814

Expected maturities of the Company's non-derivative financi

/ cial assets are presented in the t
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets toa I;leerbelqw.dThe i
assets, except where the Company expects the cash flows to occur in a different period SN
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Note UP;;:"E One to fiye CE
Yyears ¢
Years Totay
2020
assets 12
financi! ash equivalents 14 o
e andc 220.800 A 3 22,604_397
€57 aceivables iail gt 18 ’ : 220,30,
Trade 7 ssets at amo 22,875 157 - 363,709 %3 7
> % ,709
b 19 533
Total Note Upt =
0
pyea:ne One to five Over five
years years Total
2019 - csets 12 3
Sl i ,016,097 <
?::n and cash equivale 14 179,560 : . B0y
2 les 18 5 179
recefvab cost = ~ S
Trade jal assets at amortized 23,195 657 5 55854 355,654
nar::c 25654 5513y
T
Up to one One to fiye Over five
year Years years Total
10,069,724 (35
osition for 2020 10,112,138, 9(7): ;gg e
Vet posttion for 2019 "‘i\m YT
el
risk
Currency

itivity analysis
i rency sensitivii
Foreign cur

i ial assets and liabilities
ing amounts of financial
The carrying

denominated in local ang foreign currencies ag of 31 December
2020 and 2019 are as follows
31 December 2020 Note KT sy % 15
B -
Conmd s i =500 22,604,397
Cash and cash equivalents s : - s
Total
Financial liabilities 22 (11,035,256) . 2,264 (11,037,520
Trade payables (11,035,256) s (2,264) (11,037,520)
s 11,369,141 = (2,264) 11,566,877
Net position
Fa uB Total
31 December 2019 o KZT 5 ;
Financial assets " 12 22,960,239 55,858 . 23.?’:2_3:;
Cash and cash equivalents e o~ _ Bt
Total
. ,091,856
Financial liabilities 22 (12,091,536) ! (;ig; ((:: 2 556))
Trade payables i : ((320) “;'92;'241
o 10,868,703 55,858
Net position
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THE
OR 1" cands © i i
:lﬂ ¢hous? igsis 0 cludes only outstanding foreign curren,
an

CY denomj
Asitivity 270° 004 of the period for a 10% change in foreig e
14 the

ed monetg
n exchan Iy items j :
> at inated in currencies other than tenge, 8€ rates, The sensitivity a“d adjusts thei,
Tanstation lities denor
cia‘

nalysis includes
fina" 2020
usp RUB
USD RUB
; 55,
zmcial asset-s ies 3 2.269) 85? 3
Fin ncial liabilit 4 (320)
Fina Lar exchange rates were in effect during the year:
1he follow™ £
Tenge for 1 ysp
2020 2019
ar 412,95
te for the ¥&
Ave:argai;; of 31 December 42071 §:ﬂ§
5p0 ! hange in the financial liabilities due to th i :
indicates the change 1 \ 0 the weakening of th
The table ‘o ;:::nbef indicates an increase in profit for the period, while a negatgive nuemtl:enrg?nzfig the report
ate- A ;‘v:eakeni“g of the tenge by 10% against the US dollar would have an equal and Opposite efleaoie;:g?i?
fit. .
in pro!
The US dollar - j
2020 mm;m
y 5,586
- 0% B p
: 110 < (5,586)
. value of financial instruments
Fair v
<Rt i less than one year, which includ i
; and liabilities maturing in g ude trade receivables,
ﬁnanﬂal as-;‘j trade payables, are carried at the current carrying amount that management belie\’resaasgér:?(?mca?h
uiva_le“‘fue of these instruments due to their short-term nature. es
the fair v@ |
x ried at amortised cost (bonds) are recorded in the financial statements at faij
Finanv.:!aéI ias‘;luﬂg:,rs using a discount rate of 11% per annum: ¢ fair value based on
apecte
Quot‘ed !narket Significant Signifi
price in an observable gnificant
Par value Fair value active market inputs _uncbservable
(Level 1) (Level2)  'MPuts (Level 3)
asof 31 pecember 2020 339,130 81,260 - s 81,206
s of 31 December 2019 Sy B : 73,206
e d at amortised cost are recognised in the financial statements at fair value based
e liabilities measure : sed on
Leas cted cash flows discounted at the commencement date of the lease (Note 20):
A Significant ‘
Quoted prices in observable Significant
Par value Fair value an active market nputs unobservable
(Level 1) (Lesel 2) inputs (Level 3)
A of 31 December 2020 6,755,775 5,221,555 . - 5,121,555
45 of 31 December 2019 3,965,958 3,223,412 :

3,223,412
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CAPIT

ure that it will be able to continue as 80ing concern While Maximising the

30. nages its ‘ap“a,:etz:t?;isation of the debt and equity balach. The capita) stry -ture js Tepresenteg

pany \ders through t apital. The Company complies With the minimym Capital requirg NS set by the
he Co™ staI«ehf’ings and shareSfih Z Republic of Kazakhstan, The Company's strategy remaing unchanged from 2019,

ined earn mpanies o

taine? i ock Co
B, v:eon Joint S £R THE REPORTING PERIOD

AFT
EVENTS

i ded 31 December
: se financial statements for the year en
3 roval and issue of ’&h;e that had an impact on th
date of appfter the reporting
the ents a
As of te n-al eV
no M3

020, there Were
e financial performance of the Company.
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